Mayor: Cr W

Cr Warren Polglase



Councillors: P Youngblutt (Deputy Mayor) D Holdom B Longland K Milne K Skinner J van Lieshout

Minutes Planning and Regulation Ordinary Council Meeting

Tuesday 20 October 2009

held at Murwillumbah Cultural & Civic Centre commencing at 4.30pm

THIS PAGE IS BLANK

The Meeting commenced at 4.30pm.

IN ATTENDANCE

Cr W Polglase (Mayor), Cr P Youngblutt (Deputy Mayor), Cr Dot Holdom, Cr B Longland, Cr Katie Milne, Cr Kevin Skinner, Cr Joan van Lieshout.

Also present were Mr Mike Rayner (General Manager), Mr Troy Green (Director Technology & Corporate Services), Mr Patrick Knight (Director Engineering & Operations), Mr Vince Connell (Director Planning & Regulation), Mr David Oxenham (Director Community & Natural Resources), Mr Neil Baldwin (Manager Corporate Governance/Public Officer) and Mrs Meredith Smith (Minutes Secretary).

REPORTS THROUGH THE GENERAL MANAGER

REPORTS FROM THE DIRECTOR PLANNING AND REGULATION

5 [PR-CM] DA09/0466 - RISE Concept Plan Comprising Residential Retirement Living, Retail Commercial School and Open Space Precincts (MP08_0234) at Lot 1 DP 595529, Lot 1 DP 1033810, Lot 1 DP 1033807, Lot 4 DP 822786, Lot 31 DP 850230, Lot 2 DP 867486 and Lot 33 DP 1085109 Marana Street; Lot 31 DP 850230 Conmurra Avenue; Lot 2 DP 555026 147 McAllisters Road, Bilambil Heights

DECLARATION OF INTEREST

Cr W Polglase declared an Interest in this item, left the Chamber at 4.44pm and took no part in the discussion or voting. The nature of the interest is that Cr W Polglase had a previous association with the applicant.

CHAIRMANSHIP OF MEETING

Cr P Youngblutt, Deputy Mayor, chaired the meeting for this item.

302

Cr B Longland Cr K Skinner

PROPOSED that Council:-

1. Endorses the attached draft submission and forwards it to the Department of Planning to enable future discussion between the Council, the Applicant and the Department of Planning; and

- 2. Accepts to own, operate and maintain the potable water supply and sewerage reticulation system in the proposed RISE community title subdivision, excluding any portions of the development that are gated communities, and conditional on the developer;
 - providing infrastructure in accordance with the requirements of DCP A5 and to the satisfaction of the Director of Community and Natural Resources;
 - entering into an agreement with Council for the provision of the services;
 - providing normal easements where services are to be provided within private land (other than the community lot).
- 3. Requests that a report is brought forward outlining the options available to advance the strategic planning for Bilambil Heights Release Areas (including options in regards to the status of the Local Area Structure Plan prepared on behalf of the "Rise" development).
- 4. Liaises with the Applicant regarding options for Community Facilities, including options for a review of S94 Plan No. 15 Community Facilities or alternatively a Voluntary Planning Agreement.

303

AMENDMENT 1

Cr B Longland Cr D Holdom

PROPOSED that Council:-

- 1. Endorses the attached draft submission and forwards it to the Department of Planning to enable future discussion between the Council, the Applicant and the Department of Planning; and
- 2. Accepts to own, operate and maintain the potable water supply and sewerage reticulation system in the proposed RISE community title subdivision, excluding any portions of the development that are gated communities, and conditional on the developer;
 - providing infrastructure in accordance with the requirements of DCP A5 and to the satisfaction of the Director of Community and Natural Resources;
 - entering into an agreement with Council for the provision of the services;
 - providing normal easements where services are to be provided within private land (other than the community lot).

- 3. Requests that a report is brought forward outlining the options available to advance the strategic planning for Bilambil Heights Release Areas (including options in regards to the status of the Local Area Structure Plan prepared on behalf of the "Rise" development).
- 4. Liaises with the Applicant regarding options for Community Facilities, including options for a review of S94 Plan No. 15 Community Facilities or alternatively a Voluntary Planning Agreement.
- 5. Ensures that the submission to the Department of Planning conveys the strong desire of the Council to maintain the 3-storey height limit according to the Tweed LEP 2000 local context and community expectations expressed through our strategic planning processes.

Amendment 1 was Carried.

FOR VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr D Holdom, Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne AGAINST VOTE - Cr K Skinner, Cr J van Lieshout ABSENT. DID NOT VOTE - Cr Polglase

AMENDMENT 2

304

Cr K Milne Cr B Longland

PROPOSED that Council:-

- 1. Endorses the attached draft submission and forwards it to the Department of Planning to enable future discussion between the Council, the Applicant and the Department of Planning; and
- 2. In addition to the issues raised in the Council report, Council seeks to further highlight that wildlife conservation should be of the highest priority and that further investigation is required in light of the Council report which states that, "The site is of very high conservation value, containing perhaps the highest concentration of threatened rainforest flora species of anywhere in NSW.
 - a) Opportunities for a Wildlife conservation subdivision model should be fully embraced.
 - b) Minimum standards of the Koala Beach development model should be applied, including a review of those standards.
 - c) Wildlife tourism concepts and Green economic opportunities that are sympathetic to conservation objectives should be provided in the concept stage.
 - d) Provision for long term wildlife monitoring should be established.
 - e) Any clearing or other works associated with the development should be carried out under wildlife friendly guidelines.

- f) Opportunities to create partnerships for environmental education, facilities and research and development such as a biodiversity centre should be established.
- g) A fully integrated Biodiversity Strategy should be developed to substantially increase biodiversity outcomes in a whole systems approach.
- h) That consideration be given to address the current wild dog problem at the site.
- 3. The provisions of the area zoned 6b) Recreation should remain in force and that opportunities for public recreation activities in this prime scenic location, to achieve the aims and objectives of the National Landscapes Tourism initiative, be implemented.
- 4. Further investigation of partnership agreements with the Indigenous community should be required including opportunities for cultural, economic and tourism initiatives.
- 5. Sustainability is of the highest priority in new developments.

The Council report 20th Oct 09 for Kings Forest, states that, "Ecologically Sustainable Development has been part of law for many years now but still few developments, in practice over time, can claim to be truly sustainable.

Larger developments offer the opportunity to use economies of scale to achieve good outcomes in this regard and to serve as good design for others to follow" (Council report 20th Oct 09 Item 51, attachment 1, page 44).

In legislation Sustainability is defined "to ensure that the health, diversity and productivity of the environment are maintained or enhanced for the benefit of future generations".

With a number of large scale developments for Tweed currently in the planning stages there is a unique opportunity to achieve truly sustainable development and at the same time coordinate a complimentary green construction industry and green economy. Such planning would need to be incorporated at the earliest phase to achieve the greatest success and the greatest cost efficiencies.

A fully integrated Sustainable Development strategy would be required to coordinate such a process. Slow steps will fail this planet.

 a) It is strongly recommended that a revised sustainability assessment should be undertaken to further optimise Ecological Sustainable Development opportunities and to incorporate a whole systems approach that would consider all facets of the development.

- b) That the principles of Positive Development theory should be applied ie that a net positive impact to ecosystem services is achieved at all levels, and that includes innovations for bushfire protection.
- c) A Sustainability Strategy should be developed, including consideration of the logical and timely development of a Green industry to support such development.
- d) That energy efficiency measures should achieve 10 star NatHERs ratings.
- e) Further investigation is required to provide options for on site sewerage and water systems.
- 6. Best practice Social planning opportunities should be further investigated.
- 7. Low cost affordable housing opportunities should be further investigated.
- 8. Diverse forms of housing opportunities such as cluster housing should be further investigated.
- 9. Council to write to inform the State Government of objection to the progression of the Rise development through the Part 3A process, beyond of Council's planning schedule and resource capabilities.
- 10. As previously at 4., but including Environmental facilities
- 11. The proposal is considered an over development of the site in a fragile location. Densification of existing urban areas is preferred.

The Amendment 2 was Lost

FOR VOTE - Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne AGAINST VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr D Holdom, Cr K Skinner, Cr J van Lieshout ABSENT. DID NOT VOTE - Cr W Polglase

305

AMENDMENT 3

306

Cr J van Lieshout Cr D Holdom

RESOLVED that Council:-

1. Endorses the attached draft submission and forwards it to the Department of Planning to enable future discussion between the Council, the Applicant and the Department of Planning; and

- 2. Accepts to own, operate and maintain the potable water supply and sewerage reticulation system in the proposed RISE community title subdivision, excluding any portions of the development that are gated communities, and conditional on the developer;
 - providing infrastructure in accordance with the requirements of DCP A5 and to the satisfaction of the Director of Community and Natural Resources;
 - entering into an agreement with Council for the provision of the services;
 - providing normal easements where services are to be provided within private land (other than the community lot).
- 3. Requests that a report is brought forward outlining the options available to advance the strategic planning for Bilambil Heights Release Areas (including options in regards to the status of the Local Area Structure Plan prepared on behalf of the "Rise" development).
- 4. Liaises with the Applicant regarding options for Community Facilities, including options for a review of S94 Plan No. 15 Community Facilities or alternatively a Voluntary Planning Agreement.
- 5. Ensures that the submission to the Department of Planning conveys the strong desire of the Council to maintain the 3-storey height limit according to the Tweed LEP 2000 local context and community expectations expressed through our strategic planning processes.
- 6. Further expresses its concern in relation to overall sustainability aspects of the development given its sensitive nature and scale, and that the Department agrees to have further discussion with Councillors and staff in regard to those aspects.
- 7. Extends an invitation to the Minister Planning NSW to visit the Tweed Shire to become better informed of a number of State significant planning proposals currently under consideration by the State government

Amendment 3 was Carried

FOR VOTE - Unanimous ABSENT. DID NOT VOTE - Cr W Polglase

Amendment 3 on becoming the Motion was **Carried** - (Minute No 306 refers)

FOR VOTE - Unanimous ABSENT. DID NOT VOTE - Cr W Polglase

RETURN TO MEETING

Cr W Polglase has returned from temporary absence at 05:08 PM and resumed the Chair.

6 [PR-CM] DA09/0527 - Part 3A Major Project Application for a 84 Lot Residential Subdivision (MP05_0198) at Lot 1 DP 167380; Lot 2 DP 961928; Lot 1 DP 134787; Lot 5 DP 1117326, Walmsleys Road and Stott Street, Bilambil Heights

307

Cr D Holdom Cr P Youngblutt

RESOLVED that:-

- Council endorses the attached submission to the Department of Planning on the Major Project Application for a 84 lot residential subdivision (MP05_0198) at Lot 1 DP 167380; Lot 2 DP 961928; Lot 1 DP 134787; Lot 5 DP 1117326, Walmsleys Road and Stott Street, Bilambil Heights and forwards it to the Coastal Assessment Branch of the Department of Planning.
- 2. Extends an invitation to the Minister Planning NSW to visit the Tweed Shire to become better informed of a number of State significant planning proposals currently under consideration by the State government
- 3. Further expresses its concern in relation to overall sustainability aspects of the development given its sensitive nature and scale, and that the Department agrees to have further discussion with Councillors and staff in regard to those aspects.

308

AMENDMENT

Cr K Milne Cr B Longland

PROPOSED that:-

- Council endorses the attached submission to the Department of Planning on the Major Project Application for a 84 lot residential subdivision (MP05_0198) at Lot 1 DP 167380; Lot 2 DP 961928; Lot 1 DP 134787; Lot 5 DP 1117326, Walmsleys Road and Stott Street, Bilambil Heights and forwards it to the Coastal Assessment Branch of the Department of Planning.
- 2. In addition to the issues raised in the Council report, and in light of the site being subject to a potential koala corridor, Council seeks to further highlight that Koala, wildlife conservation and sustainability issues should be of the highest priority and that further investigation is required.

- a. Opportunities for a Wildlife conservation subdivision model should be fully embraced.
- b. Minimum standards of the Koala Beach development model should be applied, including a review of those standards.
- c. Wildlife tourism concepts and Green economic opportunities that are sympathetic to conservation objectives should be provided in the concept stage.
- d. Provision for long term wildlife monitoring should be established.
- e. Any clearing or other works associated with the development should be carried out under wildlife friendly guidelines.
- f. Opportunities to create partnerships for environmental education, facilities and research and development such as a biodiversity centre should be established.
- g. A fully integrated Biodiversity Strategy should be developed to substantially increase biodiversity outcomes in a whole systems approach.
- 3. Sustainability is of the highest priority in new developments.

The Council report 20th Oct 09 for Kings Forest, states that, "Ecologically Sustainable Development has been part of law for many years now but still few developments, in practice over time, can claim to be truly sustainable. Larger developments offer the opportunity to use economies of scale to achieve good outcomes in this regard and to serve as good design for others to follow" (Council report 20th Oct 09 Item 51, attachment 1, page 44).

In legislation Sustainability is defined "to ensure that the health, diversity and productivity of the environment are maintained or enhanced for the benefit of future generations".

With a number of large scale developments for Tweed currently in the planning stages there is a unique opportunity to achieve truly sustainable development and at the same time coordinate a complimentary green construction industry and green economy. Such planning would need to be incorporated at the earliest phase to achieve the greatest success and the greatest cost efficiencies.

A fully integrated Sustainable Development strategy would be required to coordinate such a process. Slow steps will fail this planet.

- a. It is strongly recommended that a sustainability assessment should be undertaken to further optimise Ecological Sustainable Development opportunities and to incorporate a whole systems approach that would consider all facets of the development.
- b. That the principles of Positive Development theory should be applied ie that a net positive impact to ecosystem services is achieved at all levels, and that includes innovations for bushfire protection .

- c. A Sustainability Strategy should be developed, including consideration of the logical and timely development of a Green industry to support such development.
- d. That energy efficiency measures should achieve 10 star NatHERs ratings.
- e. Further investigation is required to provide options for on site sewerage and water systems.
- 4. Best practice Social planning opportunities should be further investigated.
- 5. Low cost affordable housing opportunities should be further investigated.
- 6. Diverse forms of housing opportunities such as cluster housing should be further investigated.

The Amendment was Lost

FOR VOTE - Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne, Cr J van Lieshout AGAINST VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr D Holdom, Cr K Skinner, Cr W Polglase

The Motion was Carried

FOR VOTE - Unanimous

7 [PR-CM] Development Application DA09/0415 for Additions to Multi Unit Dwelling - Small Roof Structure at Lot 11 SP 79988, No. 11/1-3 Murphys Road, Kingscliff

309

Cr D Holdom Cr K Skinner

RESOLVED that Development Application DA09/0415 for additions to multi unit dwelling - small roof structure at Lot 11 SP 79988, No. 11/1-3 Murphys Road, Kingscliff be approved subject to the following conditions: -

GENERAL

 The development shall be completed in accordance with the Statement of Environmental Effects prepared by Planit Consulting dated July 2009 and plans prepared by Lightwave Architecture for 1289 One Murphy's Rd, plan numbers SK.01 to SK. 09, Issue A, dated 01.07.09, except where varied by the conditions of this consent.

[GEN0005]

2. The issue of this Development Consent does not certify compliance with the relevant provisions of the Building Code of Australia.

BUSHFIRE PROTECTION

- 3. Construction shall comply with AS3959-1999 level 3 Construction of Buildings in Bushfire Prone Areas.
- 4. Roofing shall be gutterless or have leafless guttering and valley are to be screened to prevent the build up of flammable material.
- 5. The entire property shall be managed as an Inner Protection Area as outlined within Section 4.2.2 in the Planning for Bushfire Protection Guidelines 2001
- 6. Balconies should be non-combustible as per AS 3959.

[GENNS01]

7. No additional roof structures or roof terrace areas shall be proposed on the site unless otherwise approved by the General Manager or his delegate.

[GENNS02]

8. The consent is limited to the proposed roof, supporting columns and existing balustrade indicated on the approved plans and does not include any additional walls.

[GENNS03]

9. The colours and materials used in construction of the additional roof structure shall be compatible and consistent with the remainder of the existing building.

[GENNS05]

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK

- 10. The erection of a building in accordance with a development consent must not be commenced until:
 - (a) a construction certificate for the building work has been issued by the consent authority, the council (if the council is not the consent authority) or an accredited certifier, and
 - (b) the person having the benefit of the development consent has:
 - (i) appointed a principal certifying authority for the building work, and
 - (ii) notified the principal certifying authority that the person will carry out the building work as an owner-builder, if that is the case, and
 - (c) the principal certifying authority has, no later than 2 days before the building work commences:
 - (i) notified the consent authority and the council (if the council is not the consent authority) of his or her appointment, and
 - (ii) notified the person having the benefit of the development consent of any critical stage inspections and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work, and

- (d) the person having the benefit of the development consent, if not carrying out the work as an owner-builder, has:
 - (i) appointed a principal contractor for the building work who must be the holder of a contractor licence if any residential work is involved, and
 - (ii) notified the principal certifying authority of any such appointment, and
 - (iii) unless that person is the principal contractor, notified the principal contractor of any critical stage inspection and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work.

[PCW0215]

11. Prior to work commencing, a "Notice of Commencement of Building or Subdivision Work and Appointment of Principal Certifying Authority" shall be submitted to Council at least 2 days prior to work commencing.

[PCW0225]

- 12. Where prescribed by the provisions of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000, a sign must be erected in a prominent position on any site on which building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out:
 - (a) showing the name, address and telephone number of the principal certifying authority for the work, and
 - (b) showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) for any building work and a telephone number on which that person may be contacted outside working hours, and
 - (c) stating that unauthorised entry to the site is prohibited.

Any such sign is to be maintained while the building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out, but must be removed when the work has been completed.

[PCW0255]

13. All roof waters are to be disposed of through properly jointed pipes to the street gutter, interallotment drainage or to the satisfaction of the Principal Certifying Authority. All PVC pipes to have adequate cover and installed in accordance with the provisions of AS/NZS3500.3.2. Note All roof water must be connected to an interallotment drainage system where available.

DURING CONSTRUCTION

14. Construction and/or demolition site work including the entering and leaving of vehicles is limited to the following hours, unless otherwise permitted by Council: -

Monday to Saturday from 7.00am to 6.00pm

No work to be carried out on Sundays or Public Holidays

The proponent is responsible to instruct and control subcontractors regarding hours of work.

[DUR0205]

15. The wall and roof cladding is to have low reflectivity where they would otherwise cause nuisance to the occupants of buildings with direct line of sight to the proposed building.

[DUR0245]

16. All building work (other than work relating to the erection of a temporary building) must be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Building Code of Australia (as in force on the date the application for the relevant construction certificate was made).

[DUR0375]

17. The Principal Certifying Authority is to be given a minimum of 48 hours notice prior to any critical stage inspection or any other inspection nominated by the Principal Certifying Authority via the notice under Section 81A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

[DUR0405]

- All work associated with this approval is to be carried out so as not to impact on the neighbourhood, adjacent premises or the environment. All necessary precautions, covering and protection shall be taken to minimise impact from: -
 - Noise, water or air pollution
 - dust during filling operations and also from construction vehicles
 - material removed from the site by wind

[DUR1005]

19. Any damage caused to public infrastructure (roads, footpaths, water and sewer mains, power and telephone services etc) during construction of the development shall be repaired in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate and/or prior to any use or occupation of the buildings.

[DUR1875]

20. The builder must provide an adequate trade waste service to ensure that all waste material is contained, and removed from the site for the period of construction/demolition.

[DUR2185]

PRIOR TO ISSUE OF OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE

21. A person must not commence occupation or use of the whole or any part of a new building or structure (within the meaning of Section 109H(4)) unless an occupation certificate has been issued in relation to the building or part (maximum 25 penalty units).

[POC0205]

310

AMENDMENT

Cr K Milne Cr B Longland

PROPOSED that this item be deferred to a Workshop.

The Amendment was **Lost**

FOR VOTE - Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne AGAINST VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr D Holdom, Cr K Skinner, Cr J van Lieshout, Cr W Polglase

The Motion was Carried (Minute Number 308 refers)

FOR VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr D Holdom, Cr K Skinner, Cr J van Lieshout, Cr W Polglase AGAINST VOTE - Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne

8 [PR-CM] Development Application DA08/0293 for a Two Lot into Six Lot Subdivision at Lot 12 DP 825726; Lot 25 DP 870463, No. 19 & 26 Waterlily Close, Nunderi

311

Cr P Youngblutt Cr K Skinner

PROPOSED that Development Application DA08/0293 for a two lot into six lot subdivision at Lot 12 DP 825726; Lot 25 DP 870463, No. 19 and 26 Waterlily Close, Nunderi be deferred to the next meeting of Council.

The Motion was Lost

FOR VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr K Skinner, Cr W Polglase AGAINST VOTE - Cr D Holdom, Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne, Cr J van Lieshout

312

Cr D Holdom Cr K Milne

RESOLVED Development Application DA08/0293 for a two lot into six lot subdivision at Lot 12 DP 825726; Lot 25 DP 870463, No. 19 and 26 Waterlily Close, Nunderi be refused on the following grounds: -

- 1. The proposal does not comply with clause 15 of the Tweed Local Environmental Plan as satisfactory arrangements have not been made for the removal and disposal of sewerage.
- 2. The proposal does not comply with clause 21 of the Tweed Local Environmental Plan as each proposed allotment is not capable of accommodating adequate facilities for treatment and disposal of sewerage.
- 3. The information provided with the application is insufficient and the proposal may result in impacts on the amenity of the area and quality of the environment, including aquatic habitats.
- 4. The proposal does not comply with Council's Development Control Plan Section A5 Subdivision Manual, particularly in relation to landforming.
- 5. The proposal does not adequately address issues raised by public submissions and is not in the public interest.

The Motion was **Carried**

FOR VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr D Holdom, Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne, Cr J van Lieshout AGAINST VOTE - Cr K Skinner, Cr W Polglase

9 [PR-CM] Kings Forest Preferred Project Report - Concept Plan – Residential Community Development – Council's Submission to the Department of Planning

DECLARATION OF INTEREST

Cr W Polglase wishes to declare a non significant, non-pecuniary interest in Items 9 in accordance with the Code of Conduct.

The declaration is as a result of a previous indirect association with the applicant.

Cr P Youngblutt wishes to declare a non significant, non-pecuniary interest in Items 51 in accordance with the Code of Conduct.

The declaration is as a result of a previous indirect association with the applicant.

313 Cr B Longland Cr D Holdom

PROPOSED that:-

- Council endorses the attached draft submission in respect of the Kings Forest Preferred Project – Concept Plan – Residential Community Development – and submits it to the Department of Planning.
- 2. With respect to koala conservation, the submission should require strict adherence to the principles of SEPP 44 (Clause 3) and urge the Department of Planning to specify the principles applicable at the Koala Beach development at Pottsville as a basis for the protection of the Tweed Coast koala population.
- 3. Further expresses its concern in relation to overall sustainability aspects of the development given its sensitive nature and scale, and that the Department agrees to have further discussion with Councillors and staff in regard to those aspects.
- 4. Extends an invitation to the Minister Planning NSW to visit the Tweed Shire to become better informed of a number of State significant planning proposals currently under consideration by the State government

314

AMENDMENT 1

Cr K Milne Cr B Longland

PROPOSED that:-

- 1. Council endorses the attached draft submission in respect of the Kings Forest Preferred Project – Concept Plan – Residential Community Development – and submits it to the Department of Planning.
- 2. With respect to koala conservation, the submission should require strict adherence to the principles of SEPP 44 (Clause 3) and urge the Department of Planning to specify the principles applicable at the Koala Beach development at Pottsville as a basis for the protection of the Tweed Coast koala population.
- 3. Further expresses its concern in relation to overall sustainability aspects of the development given its sensitive nature and scale, and that the Department agrees to have further discussion with Councillors and staff in regard to those aspects.

- 4. Extends an invitation to the Minister Planning NSW to visit the Tweed Shire to become better informed of a number of State significant planning proposals currently under consideration by the State government
- 5. As a first priority all options for resumption of preferably the entire site or parts of the land should be investigated.

Amendment 1 was Lost

FOR VOTE - Cr K Milne AGAINST VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr D Holdom, Cr K Skinner, Cr B Longland, Cr J van Lieshout, Cr W Polglase

315

Cr D Holdom Cr B Longland

RESOLVED that Standing Orders be suspended to deal with the items that Cr Milne wishes to put forward as amendments.

FOR VOTE - Unanimous

316

Cr W Polglase Cr P Youngblutt

RESOLVED that Standing Orders be resumed.

FOR VOTE - Unanimous

317

AMENDMENT 2

Cr K Milne Cr B Longland

RESOLVED that:-

- 1. Council endorses the attached draft submission in respect of the Kings Forest Preferred Project – Concept Plan – Residential Community Development – and submits it to the Department of Planning.
- 2. With respect to koala conservation, the submission should require strict adherence to the principles of SEPP 44 (Clause 3) and urge the Department of Planning to specify the principles applicable at the Koala Beach development at Pottsville as a basis for the protection of the Tweed Coast koala population.

- 3. Further expresses its concern in relation to overall sustainability aspects of the development given its sensitive nature and scale, and that the Department agrees to have further discussion with Councillors and staff in regard to those aspects.
- 4. Extends an invitation to the Minister Planning NSW to visit the Tweed Shire to become better informed of a number of State significant planning proposals currently under consideration by the State government
- 5. Investigates:
 - a) Opportunities for a Wildlife conservation subdivision model should be fully embraced.
 - b) The eastern side of the development, including the whole of the Cudgen Paddock, and the Heathlands, (as outlined in the Milledge submission) should be preserved to establish the minimum area required to maintain biodiversity.
 - c) Further investigation of alternative access for the eastern entry road, including the possibility of the Reardon's/ Plantation Rd. should be provided.
 - d) Provision for long term wildlife monitoring should be established.
 - e) Any clearing or other works associated with the development including current pine removal activities should be carried out under wildlife friendly guidelines.
 - Wildlife tourism concepts and economic opportunities that are sympathetic to conservation objectives should be provided in the concept stage.
 - g) Opportunities to create partnerships for environmental education, facilities and research and development such as a biodiversity centre should be established.
 - h) A fully integrated Biodiversity Strategy should be developed to substantially increase biodiversity outcomes in a whole systems approach.
- 6. Best practice Social planning opportunities should be further investigated.
- 7. Low cost affordable housing opportunities, including cluster housing should be further investigated.
- 8. A sustainability strategy embracing principles of positive development with energy efficiency and wildlife tourism initiatives be investigated.
- 9. The proposal is considered a potential over development, in certain sites, mindful of its fragile location.

Amendment 2 was **Carried**

FOR VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr D Holdom, Cr K Skinner, Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne, Cr J van Lieshout AGAINST VOTE - Cr W Polglase

Amendment 2 on becoming the Motion was **Carried** - (Minute No 317 refers)

FOR VOTE - Voting - Unanimous

ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING

Adjournment for dinner at 6.34pm.

RESUMPTION OF MEETING

The Meeting resumed at 7.27pm

10 [PR-CM] Development Application DA08/1241.07 for an Amendment to Development Consent DA08/1241 for a New Dwelling, Inground Swimming Pool and Detached Granny Flat at Lot 281 DP 1120559, No. 11 Woodfull Crescent, Pottsville

318

Cr D Holdom Cr P Youngblutt

RESOLVED that Development Application DA08/1241.07 for an amendment to development consent DA08/1241 for a new dwelling, in ground swimming pool and detached granny flat at Lot 281 DP 1120559, No. 11 Woodfull Crescent, Pottsville be approved subject to the following changes being made to the conditions of consent:-

- 1. Delete Condition 1 and replace with a new condition 1A as follows:
 - 1A. The development shall be completed in accordance with the Statement of Environmental Effects and the approved S96 Plans (DA08/1241.07) as follows:
 - Sheet Nos 1A, 2A, 3, 4, 5A, 6A, 7, 10, 12A, 13A, and 14A prepared by Parameter Designs and dated 09/06/2009, except where varied by the conditions of this consent.

[GEN0005]

The Motion was Carried

FOR VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr D Holdom, Cr K Skinner, Cr B Longland, Cr J van Lieshout, Cr W Polglase AGAINST VOTE - Cr K Milne 11 [PR-CM] Development Application DA08/0911 for a Staged Integrated Housing Development Comprising 18 Residential Dwellings, Community Building, Car Parking, 19 Lot Community Title Subdivision with Pathway to Public Open Space at Lot 86 DP 1066472; Lot 238 DP 1070792, Salt Water Crescent & No. 41 Elliston Street, Kingscliff

319

Cr D Holdom Cr P Youngblutt

RESOLVED that:

- A. State Environmental Planning Policy No. 1 objection to Schedule 3 of the Tweed Local Environmental Plan 2000 regarding minimum allotment sizes in the 2(f) zone be supported and the concurrence of the Director-General of the Department of Planning be assumed, and
- B. Development Application DA08/0911 for a staged integrated housing development comprising 18 residential dwellings, community building, car parking, 19 lot community title subdivision (inclusive of common lot) with pathway to public open space at Lot 86 DP 1066472; Lot 238 DP 1070792, Saltwater Crescent and No. 41 Elliston Street, Kingscliff be approved subject to the following conditions: -

GENERAL

- 1. The development shall be completed in accordance with the Statement of Environmental Effects and the following Plans:
 - Plan No. 2008 02 01b Revision 1 (Community Lots) dated 22/04/09, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
 - Plan No. 2008 02 01c Revision 1 (Site Plan Ground) dated 22/04/09, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
 - Plan No. 2008 02 01d Revision 1 (Site Plan Upper) dated 22/04/09, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
 - Plan No. 2008 02-01h Revision 2 (Concept Landscape Plan) (as amended in red) dated 30/09/09, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
 - Plan No. 2008 02 01h/s Revision 1 (Streetscape Fencing Design) (as amended in red) dated 22/04/09, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
 - Plan No. 01/01 Issue 1A (Vehicle Manoeuvring Plan) dated 17 April 2009, prepared by Greg Alderson and Associates Pty Ltd
 - Plan No. 2008 02 02 (Lot 1 Model DR Floor Plans) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes

- Plan No. 2008 02 02c (Lot 1 Model DR Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 02d (Lot 1 Model DR Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 03 (Lot 2 Model D2 Floor Plans) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 03c (Lot 2 Model D2 Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 03d (Lot 2 Model D2 Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 04 (Lots 3-5 Model D Floor Plans) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 04/6 (Lot 6 Model D Floor Plans) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 04c (Lots 3-6 Model D Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 04d (Lots 3-6 Model D Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 05 (Lots 7, 9, 10, 12 and 13 Model A Floor Plans) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 05c (Lots 7 13 Model A Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 05d (Lots 7 13 Model A Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 06 (Lots 8 and 11 Model A2 Floor Plans) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 06c (Lots 8 and 11 Model A2 Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 06d (Lots 8 and 11 Model A2 Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 07 (Lot 14 Model E1 Floor Plans) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 07c (Lot 14 Model E1 Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 07d (Lot 14 Model E1 Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 08 (Lot 15 Model E2 Floor Plans) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 08c (Lot 15 Model E2 Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes

- Plan No. 2008 02 08d (Lot 15 Model E2 Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 09 (Lot 16 Model C Floor Plans) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 09c (Lot 16 Model C Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 09d (Lot 16 Model C Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 10 (Lot 17 Model B3 Floor Plans) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 10c (Lot 17 Model B3 Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 10d (Lot 17 Model B3 Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 11 (Lot 18 Model B2 Floor Plans) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 11c (Lot 18 Model B2 Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes
- Plan No. 2008 02 11d (Lot 18 Model B2 Elevations) dated 3/06/08, prepared by Anstey Designer Homes,

except where varied by the conditions of this consent.

[GEN0005]

2. The issue of this Development Consent does not certify compliance with the relevant provisions of the Building Code of Australia.

[GEN0115]

3. The development is to be carried out in accordance with Tweed Shire Council Development Control Plan Part A5 - Subdivision Manual and Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications.

[GEN0125]

4. Approval is given subject to the location of, protection of, and/or any necessary modifications to any existing public utilities situated within or adjacent to the subject property.

[GEN0135]

5. A Construction Certificate approval is to be obtained for all proposed pre-cast concrete panel fencing of any height and masonry fencing in excess of 1.2 metres in height, prior to any construction of the fence being commenced.

Site specific design details or approved generic details prepared by a practicing structural engineer are required to be submitted and approved as part of the Construction Certificate application.

Such structural engineers design details are to confirm that the fence proposal has been designed to take account of all site issues including the site's soil and load bearing characteristics, wind and other applied loadings, long term durability of all components particularly in relation to corrosion and compliance with Tweed Shire Council's policies for "Sewers - Building in Proximity" and provision of appropriate pedestrian sight clearances to footpaths in accordance with Australian Standard AS2890 "Parking Facilities".

[GEN0145]

6. Notwithstanding the issue of this development consent, separate consent from Council under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993, must be obtained prior to any works taking place on the road reserve or footpath for connecting access pathways to Casuarina Way. Applications for consent under Section 138 must be submitted on Council's standard application form and be accompanied by the required attachments and prescribed fee.

[GEN0245]

 Stormwater management shall be in general accordance with the Stormwater Management Report prepared by Greg Alderson and Associates Pty Ltd, dated 17th April 2009, except where varied by the conditions of this consent.

The proposed Gross Pollutant Trap (GPT) must be installed upstream of the proposed On Site Detention (OSD) tank.

[GENNS01]

 Erosion and Sediment Control shall be designed, installed and maintained in accordance with Tweed Shire Council Development Design Specification D7 - Stormwater Quality and its Annexure A -"Code of Practice for Soil and Water Management on Construction Works".

[GENNS02]

9. All works shall be retained within the development site. No parking, storage or access is permitted to occur through the adjoining public land.

[GENNS03]

10. Should the existing landscaping on the adjoining public land be affected by construction, it must be repaired to the satisfaction of Council's General Manager or delegate.

[GENNS04]

- 11. The proposed access path on Community Land, north of the development (Lot 86 DP1066472) is acceptable provided the following are achieved:
 - i. Any damage to the existing garden bed shall be repaired.
 - ii. No plants are permitted within 1m of the path so as not to overgrow the path. Any plants within this distance are to be removed using appropriate horticultural methods.

iii. An inspection of the completed works associated with this path must be undertaken by Council's Recreation Services staff in the presence of the developer's representative before any occupation certificate is issued.

[GENNS05]

12. The site is to be developed into a Community Title Subdivision. The plan of subdivision shall be registered with the Lands Titles Office prior to issue of any occupation certificate for any dwelling associated with this consent.

[GENNS06]

13. Outdoor security lighting shall be located and designed so as to avoid light spill into the living and sleeping areas of the dwelling. Light spill shall be confined to the source property.

[GENNS07]

14. All air conditioning and barbeque facilities shall be consistent with the Tweed Development Control Plan Section A1.

[GENNS08]

PRIOR TO ISSUE OF CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

- 15. The developer shall provide the following parking facilities including parking for the disabled (as required) in accordance with Tweed Shire Council Development Control Plan Part A2 Site Access and Parking Code.
 - A minimum of 2 car parking spaces per dwelling,
 - A minimum of 5 visitor car spaces with unrestricted access,
 - A minimum of 2 car wash bays note Council will accept these car wash bays being of dual use with visitor car spaces

Full design detail of the proposed parking and manoeuvring areas shall be submitted to and approved by the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate.

[PCC0065]

16. Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate, a cash bond or bank guarantee (unlimited in time) shall be lodged with Council for an amount based on 1% of the value of the works (minimum \$1,552).

The bond may be called up at any time and the funds used to rectify any non-compliance with the conditions of this consent which are not being addressed to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate.

The bond will be refunded, if not expended, when the final Subdivision Certificate is issued.

[PCC0275]

17. In accordance with Section 109F(i) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (as amended), a construction certificate for SUBDIVISION WORKS OR BUILDING WORKS shall NOT be issued until any long service levy payable under Section 34 of the Building and Construction Industry Long Service Payments Act, 1986 (or where such levy is payable by instalments, the first instalment of the levy) has been paid. Council is authorised to accept payment. Where payment has been made elsewhere, proof of payment is to be provided.

[PCC0285]

18. All earthworks shall be graded at a minimum of 1% so that the site drains to the street or other approved permanent drainage system and where necessary, perimeter drainage is to be provided. The construction of any retaining wall or cut/fill batter must at no time result in additional runoff or ponding occurring within neighbouring properties.

All earthworks shall be contained wholly within the subject land. Detailed engineering plans of cut/fill levels and perimeter drainage shall be submitted with a Construction Certificate application for Council approval.

[PCC0485]

- 19. Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate for Civil works, the following detail in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority for approval.
 - (a) copies of compliance certificates relied upon
 - (b) four (4) copies of detailed engineering plans and specifications. The detailed plans shall include but are not limited to the following:
 - earthworks
 - roadworks / access including;
 - (c) Provision of an 6.0m wide private access in accordance with Section A2 – "Site Access and Parking Code" of Council's consolidated Tweed Development Control Plan and Council's "Driveway Access to Property – Part 1" Design Specification June 2004.

The access shall provide the required 2m x 2m "sight triangle" envelope at the entrance to Salt Water Crescent.

- stormwater drainage including;
- (d) Permanent stormwater quality treatment, sized according to Council's Development Design Specification D7 *Stormwater Quality*, Section D7.12.
 - water supply works including;
- (e) Internal reticulation and hydrants,

- (f) Bulk water meter
 - sewerage works including;
- (g) New manhole off existing stub in western corner of the site,
 - internal reticulation
 - landscaping works
 - sedimentation and erosion management plans
 - location of all service conduits (water, sewer, Country Energy and Telstra)

The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act 2000 and Section 138 of the Roads Act to be certified by an Accredited Certifier.

[PCC0985]

- 20. Permanent stormwater quality treatment shall be provided in accordance with the following:
 - (a) The Construction Certificate Application shall include a detailed stormwater management plan (SWMP) for the occupational or use stage of the development prepared in accordance with Section D7.07 of Councils *Development Design Specification* D7 – Stormwater Quality.
 - (b) Permanent stormwater quality treatment shall comply with section 5.5.3 of the Tweed Urban Stormwater Quality Management Plan and Councils Development Design Specification D7 – Stormwater Quality.
 - (c) The stormwater and site works may incorporate water sensitive design principles and where practical, integrated water cycle management. Typical water sensitive features include infiltration, maximising permeable/landscaped areas, stormwater retention /detention/reuse, and use of grass swales in preference to hard engineered drainage systems.
 - (d) Specific Requirements to be detailed within the Construction certificate application include:
 - (e) Shake down area shall be installed within the property, immediately prior to any vehicle entering or exiting the site prior to any earthworks being undertaken.

- (f) Runoff from all hardstand areas, (including car parking and hardstand landscaping areas and excluding roof areas) must be treated to remove oil and sediment contaminants prior to discharge to the public realm. All permanent stormwater treatment devices must be sized according to Council's Development Design Specification D7 – Stormwater Quality, Section D7.12. Engineering details of the proposed devices, including maintenance schedules, shall be submitted with a s68 Stormwater Application for approval prior to issue of a Construction Certificate.
- (g) Roof water does not require treatment, and should be discharged downstream of treatment devices, or the treatment devices must be sized accordingly.

[PCC1105]

21. Disposal of stormwater by means of infiltration devices shall be carried out in accordance with Section D7.9 of Tweed Shire Councils Development Design and Construction Specification - Stormwater Quality.

[PCC1125]

- 22. Stormwater
 - (a) Details of the proposed roof water disposal, including surcharge overland flow paths are to be submitted to and approved by the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate. These details shall include likely landscaping within the overland flow paths.
 - (b) All roof water shall be discharged to infiltration pits located wholly within the subject allotment.
 - (c) The infiltration rate for sizing infiltration devices shall be 3m per day:
 - * As a minimum requirement, infiltration devices are to be sized to accommodate the ARI 3 month storm (deemed to be 40% of the ARI one year event) over a range of storm durations from 5 minutes to 24 hours and infiltrate this storm within a 24 hour period, before surcharging occurs.
 - (d) Surcharge overflow from the infiltration area to the street gutter, inter-allotment or public drainage system must occur by visible surface flow, not piped.
 - (e) Runoff other than roof water must be treated to remove contaminants prior to entry into the infiltration areas (to maximise life of infiltration areas between major cleaning/maintenance overhauls).

- (f) If the site is under strata or community title, the community title plan is to ensure that the infiltration areas are contained within common land that remain the responsibility of the body corporate (to ensure continued collective responsibility for site drainage).
- (g) All infiltration devices are to be designed to allow for cleaning and maintenance overhauls.
- (h) All infiltration devices are to be designed by a suitably qualified Engineer taking into account the proximity of the footings for the proposed/or existing structures on the subject property, and existing or likely structures on adjoining properties.
- (i) All infiltration devices are to be designed to allow for construction and operation vehicular loading.
- (j) All infiltration devices are to be located clear of stormwater or sewer easements.

[PCC1135]

23. The development is required to provide a single bulk water service, placed at a suitable location within the subject land off Salt Water Crescent, to the satisfaction of the Director of Engineering Services.

Individual metering beyond this point shall be managed by occupants. Application for the bulk metre shall be made to the supply authority detailing the size in accordance with NSW Code of Practice - Plumbing and Drainage and BCA requirements.

Note: The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act, 2000 to be certified by an Accredited Certifier.

[PCC1185]

24. An application shall be lodged and approved by Tweed Shire Council under Section 68 of the Local Government Act for the installation of stormwater quality control devices prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate.

The Legal Point of Discharge for piped stormwater for the development is via connection into the existing field inlet and 450mm dia pipe in the north-western corner of the site.

[PCC1195]

25. The applicant shall prepare a site plan and applicable elevations demonstrating the central letterbox structure is consistent with the Tweed Development Control Plan Section A1. The plans shall be prepared to the satisfaction of Council's General Manager or delegate.

[PCCNS01]

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK

26. The proponent shall accurately locate and identify any existing sewer main, stormwater line or other underground infrastructure within or adjacent to the site and the Principal Certifying Authority advised of its location and depth prior to commencing works and ensure there shall be no conflict between the proposed development and existing infrastructure prior to start of any works.

[PCW0005]

27. Prior to commencement of work all actions or prerequisite works required at that stage, as required by other conditions or approved management plans or the like, shall be installed/operated in accordance with those conditions or plans.

[PCW0015]

- 28. Prior to the commencement of works, the applicant shall ensure that a Site-Specific Safety Management Plan and Safe Work Methods for the subject site have been prepared and put in place in accordance with either:-
 - (a) Occupation Health and Safety and Rehabilitation Management Systems Guidelines, 3rd Edition, NSW Government, or
 - (b) AS4804 Occupation Health and Safety Management Systems -General Guidelines on Principles Systems and Supporting Techniques.
 - (c) WorkCover Regulations 2000

[PCW0025]

- 29. The erection of a building in accordance with a development consent must not be commenced until:
 - (a) a construction certificate for the building work has been issued by the consent authority, the council (if the council is not the consent authority) or an accredited certifier, and
 - (b) the person having the benefit of the development consent has:
 - (i) appointed a principal certifying authority for the building work, and
 - (ii) notified the principal certifying authority that the person will carry out the building work as an owner-builder, if that is the case, and
 - (c) the principal certifying authority has, no later than 2 days before the building work commences:
 - (i) notified the consent authority and the council (if the council is not the consent authority) of his or her appointment, and

- (ii) notified the person having the benefit of the development consent of any critical stage inspections and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work, and
- (d) the person having the benefit of the development consent, if not carrying out the work as an owner-builder, has:
 - (i) appointed a principal contractor for the building work who must be the holder of a contractor licence if any residential work is involved, and
 - (ii) notified the principal certifying authority of any such appointment, and
 - (iii) unless that person is the principal contractor, notified the principal contractor of any critical stage inspection and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work.

[PCW0215]

30. Prior to work commencing, a "Notice of Commencement of Building or Subdivision Work and Appointment of Principal Certifying Authority" shall be submitted to Council at least 2 days prior to work commencing.

[PCW0225]

- 31. Residential building work:
 - (a) Residential building work within the meaning of the <u>Home</u> <u>Building Act 1989</u> must not be carried out unless the principal certifying authority for the development to which the work relates (not being the council) has given the council written notice of the following information:
 - (i) in the case of work for which a principal contractor is required to be appointed:
 - in the name and licence number of the principal contractor, and
 - * the name of the insurer by which the work is insured under Part 6 of that Act,
 - (ii) in the case of work to be done by an owner-builder:
 - * the name of the owner-builder, and
 - * if the owner-builder is required to hold an owner builder permit under that Act, the number of the owner-builder permit.

(b) If arrangements for doing the residential building work are changed while the work is in progress so that the information notified under subclause (1) becomes out of date, further work must not be carried out unless the principal certifying authority for the development to which the work relates (not being the council) has given the council written notice of the updated information.

[PCW0235]

- 32. A temporary builder's toilet is to be provided prior to commencement of work at the rate of one (1) closet for every fifteen (15) persons or part of fifteen (15) persons employed at the site. Each toilet provided must be:-
 - (a) a standard flushing toilet connected to a public sewer, or
 - (b) if that is not practicable, an accredited sewage management facility approved by the council

[PCW0245]

- 33. Where prescribed by the provisions of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000, a sign must be erected in a prominent position on any site on which building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out:
 - (a) showing the name, address and telephone number of the principal certifying authority for the work, and
 - (b) showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) for any building work and a telephone number on which that person may be contacted outside working hours, and
 - (c) stating that unauthorised entry to the site is prohibited.

Any such sign is to be maintained while the building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out, but must be removed when the work has been completed.

[PCW0255]

34. Any imported fill material shall be from an approved source.

[PCW0375]

- 35. Civil work in accordance with a development consent must not be commenced until:-
 - (a) a Construction Certificate for the civil work has been issued in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specification C101 by:
 - (i) the consent authority, or
 - (ii) an accredited certifier, and
 - (b) the person having the benefit of the development consent:
 - (i) has appointed a principal certifying authority,

- (ii) has appointed a Subdivision Works Accredited Certifier (SWAC) in accordance with Tweed Shire Council's Development Control Plan, Part A5 - Subdivision Manual, Appendix C, with accreditation in accordance with the Building Professionals Board Accreditation Scheme. As a minimum the SWAC shall possess accreditation in the following categories:
 - C4: Accredited Certifier Stormwater management facilities construction compliance
 - C6: Accredited Certifier Subdivision road and drainage construction compliance
- (iii) has notified the consent authority and the council (if the council is not the consent authority) of the appointment,
- (iv) a sign detailing the project and containing the names and contact numbers of the Developer, Contractor and Subdivision Works Accredited Certifier is erected and maintained in a prominent position at the entry to the site in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications. The sign is to remain in place until the Subdivision Certificate is issued, and
- (c) the person having the benefit of the development consent has given at least 2 days' notice to the council of the person's intention to commence the civil work.

[PCW0815]

36. The proponent shall provide to the PCA copies of Public Risk Liability Insurance to a minimum value of \$10 Million for the period of commencement of works until the completion of the defects liability period.

[PCW0835]

37. Prior to commencement of work on the site all erosion and sedimentation control measures are to be installed and operational including the provision of a "shake down" area where required to the satisfaction of the Principal Certifying Authority.

[PCW0985]

38. An application to connect to Council's sewer or carry out plumbing and drainage works, together with any prescribed fees including inspection fees, is to be submitted to and approved by Council prior to the commencement of any building works on the site.

[PCW1065]

DURING CONSTRUCTION

39. All proposed works are to be carried out in accordance with the conditions of development consent, approved construction certificate, drawings and specifications.

[DUR0005]

40. If during construction works any Aboriginal object or relic is disturbed or uncovered, works are to cease and the Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water are to be notified immediately, in accordance with the provisions of the <u>National Parks</u> and Wildlife Act 1974.

[DUR0025]

41. Construction and/or demolition site work including the entering and leaving of vehicles is limited to the following hours, unless otherwise permitted by Council: -

Monday to Saturday from 7.00am to 6.00pm

No work to be carried out on Sundays or Public Holidays

The proponent is responsible to instruct and control subcontractors regarding hours of work.

[DUR0205]

- 42. All reasonable steps shall be taken to muffle and acoustically baffle all plant and equipment. In the event of complaints from the neighbours, which Council deem to be reasonable, the noise from the construction site is not to exceed the following:
 - A. Short Term Period 4 weeks.

LAeq noise level measured over a period of not less than 15 minutes when the construction site is in operation, must not exceed the background level by more than 20dB(A) at the boundary of the nearest likely affected residence.

B. Long term period - the duration.

LAeq noise level measured over a period of not less than 15 minutes when the construction site is in operation, must not exceed the background level by more than 15dB(A) at the boundary of the nearest affected residence.

[DUR0215]

43. All building work (other than work relating to the erection of a temporary building) must be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Building Code of Australia (as in force on the date the application for the relevant construction certificate was made).

[DUR0375]

44. Building materials used in the construction of the building are not to be deposited or stored on Council's footpath or road reserve, unless prior approval is obtained from Council.

[DUR0395]

45. The Principal Certifying Authority is to be given a minimum of 48 hours notice prior to any critical stage inspection or any other inspection nominated by the Principal Certifying Authority via the notice under Section 81A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

[DUR0405]

46. It is the responsibility of the applicant to restrict public access to the construction works site, construction works or materials or equipment on the site when construction work is not in progress or the site is otherwise unoccupied in accordance with WorkCover NSW requirements and Occupational Health and Safety Regulation 2001.

[DUR0415]

47. Proposed earthworks shall be carried out in accordance with AS 3798, "Guidelines on Earthworks for Commercial and Residential Developments".

[DUR0795]

 The use of vibratory compaction equipment (other than hand held devices) within 100m of any dwelling house or building is strictly prohibited.

[DUR0815]

49. The development is to be carried out in accordance with the current BASIX certificate and schedule of commitments approved in relation to this development consent.

[DUR0905]

50. Provision to be made for the designation of two durable and pervious car wash-down bays. The wash bays must be appropriately sized and identified for that specific purpose and be supplied with an adequate water supply for use within the areas. Any surface run-off from the area must not discharge directly to the stormwater system.

[DUR0975]

51. No soil, sand, gravel, clay or other material shall be disposed of off the site without the prior written approval of Tweed Shire Council General Manager or his delegate.

[DUR0985]

52. The surrounding road carriageways are to be kept clean of any material carried onto the roadway by construction vehicles. Any work carried out by Council to remove material from the roadway will be at the Developers expense and any such costs are payable prior to the issue of any Occupation Certificate.

[DUR0995]

53. All work associated with this approval is to be carried out so as not to impact on the neighbourhood, adjacent premises or the environment. All necessary precautions, covering and protection shall be taken to minimise impact from: -

- Noise, water or air pollution
- dust during filling operations and also from construction vehicles
- material removed from the site by wind

[DUR1005]

54. The burning off of trees and associated vegetation felled by clearing operations or builders waste is prohibited. Such materials shall either be recycled or disposed of in a manner acceptable to Councils General Manager or his delegate.

[DUR1015]

55. All practicable measures must be taken to prevent and minimise harm to the environment as a result of the construction, operation and, where relevant, the decommissioning of the development.

[DUR1025]

56. All landscaping is to comply with the 88B Instrument pertaining to the site.

[DUR1055]

57. Where the construction work is on or adjacent to public roads, parks or drainage reserves the development shall provide and maintain all warning signs, lights, barriers and fences in accordance with AS 1742 (Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices). The contractor or property owner shall be adequately insured against Public Risk Liability and shall be responsible for any claims arising from these works.

[DUR1795]

- 58. Before the commencement of the access road construction, pavement design detail including reports from a Registered NATA Consultant shall be submitted to Council for approval and demonstrating.
 - (a) That the pavement has been designed in accordance with Tweed Shire Councils Development Design Specification, D2.
 - (b) That the pavement materials to be used comply with the specifications tabled in Tweed Shire Councils Construction Specifications, C242-C245, C247, C248 and C255.
 - (c) That site fill areas have been compacted to the specified standard.
 - (d) That supervision of Bulk Earthworks associated with the access has been to Level 1 and frequency of field density testing has been completed in accordance with Table 8.1 of AS 3798-1996.

[DUR1805]

59. During the construction of the access, tests shall be undertaken by a Registered NATA Geotechnical firm. A report, including copies of test results shall be submitted to the PCA demonstrating;

- (a) That the pavement layers have been compacted in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications.
- (b) That pavement testing has been completed in accordance with Table 8.1 of AS 3798 including the provision of a core profile for the full depth of the pavement.

[DUR1825]

60. The proponent must not undertake any work within the public road reserve without giving Council's Engineering and Operations Division forty eight (48) hours notice of proposed commencement. Failure to comply with this condition may result in a stop work notice being issued and/or rejection of the works undertaken.

[DUR1845]

61. Any damage caused to public infrastructure (roads, footpaths, water and sewer mains, power and telephone services etc) during construction of the development shall be repaired in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications prior to any use or occupation of any buildings.

[DUR1875]

62. Tweed Shire Council shall be given a minimum 24 hours notice to carry out the following compulsory inspections in accordance with Tweed Shire Council Development Control Plan, Part A5 -Subdivision Manual, Appendix D, based on the rates contained in Council's current Fees and Charges:-

<u>Roadworks</u>

- (a) Pre-construction commencement erosion and sedimentation control measures
- (b) Completion of earthworks
- (c) Excavation of subgrade
- (d) Pavement sub-base
- (e) Pavement pre kerb (if proposed)
- (f) Pavement pre seal
- (g) Pathways, footways, bikeways formwork/reinforcement (as required)
- (h) Final inspections on maintenance
- (i) Off Maintenance inspection

Water Reticulation, Sewer Reticulation, Drainage

- (a) Excavation
- (b) Bedding
- (c) Laying/jointing
- (d) Manholes/pits

- (e) Backfilling
- (f) Permanent erosion and sedimentation control measures
- (g) Drainage channels
- (h) Final inspection on maintenance
- (i) Off maintenance

Council's role is limited to the above mandatory inspections and does <u>NOT</u> include supervision of the works, which is the responsibility of the Developers Supervising Consulting Engineer.

The EP&A Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act 2000 to be certified by an "accredited certifier".

[DUR1895]

63. Where the kerb or footpath is to be removed for driveway laybacks, stormwater connections, pram ramps or any other reason, the kerb or footpath must be sawcut on each side of the work to enable a neat and tidy joint to be constructed.

[DUR1905]

64. The developer/contractor is to maintain a copy of the development consent and Construction Certificate approval including plans and specifications on the site at all times.

[DUR2015]

- 65. Swimming Pools (Building)
 - (a) The swimming pool is to be installed and access thereto restricted in accordance with Australian Standard AS 1926.1 – 2007 and AS 1926.3 -2003. (Refer Council's web site www.tweed.nsw.gov.au)
 - (b) Swimming pools shall have suitable means for the drainage and disposal of overflow water.
 - (c) The pool pump and filter is to be enclosed and located in a position so as not to cause a noise nuisance to adjoining properties.
 - (d) Warning notices are to be provided in accordance with Part 3 of the Swimming Pool Regulations 2008.

[DUR2075]

66. Backwash from the swimming pool is to be connected to the sewer in accordance with Australian Standard AS 3500.2 Section 10.9.

[DUR2085]

67. The builder must provide an adequate trade waste service to ensure that all waste material is contained, and removed from the site for the period of construction/demolition.

[DUR2185]

68. A garbage storage area shall be provided in accordance with Council's "Code for Storage and Disposal of Garbage and Other Solid Waste".

[DUR2195]

69. Regular inspections shall be carried out by the Supervising Engineer on site to ensure that adequate erosion control measures are in place and in good condition both during and after construction.

Additional inspections are also required by the Supervising Engineer after each storm event to assess the adequacy of the erosion control measures, make good any erosion control devices and clean up any sediment that has left the site or is deposited on public land or in waterways.

This inspection program is to be maintained until the maintenance bond is released or until Council is satisfied that the site is fully rehabilitated.

[DUR2375]

70. The site shall not be dewatered, unless written approval to carry out dewatering operations is received from the Tweed Shire Council General Manager or his delegate.

[DUR2425]

71. All waters that are to be discharged from the site shall have a pH between 6.5 and 8.5 and suspended solids not greater than 50mg/l. The contractor shall nominate a person responsible for monitoring of the quality of such discharge waters on a daily basis and the results recorded. Such results shall be made available to Council's Environmental Health Officer(s) upon request.

[DUR2435]

72. During construction, a "satisfactory inspection report" is required to be issued by Council for all s68h2 permanent stormwater quality control devices, prior to backfilling. The proponent shall liaise with Councils Engineering and Operations Division to arrange a suitable inspection.

[DUR2445]

- 73. Council is to be given 24 hours notice for any of the following inspections prior to the next stage of construction:
 - (a) internal drainage, prior to slab preparation;
 - (b) water plumbing rough in, and/or stackwork prior to the erection of brick work or any wall sheeting;
 - (c) external drainage prior to backfilling.
 - (d) completion of work and prior to occupation of the building.

[DUR2485]

- 74. Plumbing
 - (a) A plumbing permit is to be obtained from Council prior to commencement of any plumbing and drainage work.

(b) The whole of the plumbing and drainage work is to be completed in accordance with the requirements of the NSW Code of Practice for Plumbing and Drainage.

[DUR2495]

75. An isolation cock is to be provided to the water services for each unit in a readily accessible and identifiable position.

[DUR2505]

76. Back flow prevention devices shall be installed wherever cross connection occurs or is likely to occur. The type of device shall be determined in accordance with AS 3500.1 and shall be maintained in working order and inspected for operational function at intervals not exceeding 12 months in accordance with Section 4.7.2 of this Standard.

[DUR2535]

77. Overflow relief gully is to be located clear of the building and at a level not less than 150mm below the lowest fixture within the building and 75mm above finished ground level.

[DUR2545]

- 78. All new hot water installations shall deliver hot water at the outlet of sanitary fixtures used primarily for personal hygiene purposes at a temperature not exceeding:-
 - * 43.5°C for childhood centres, primary and secondary schools and nursing homes or similar facilities for aged, sick or disabled persons; and
 - 50°C in all other classes of buildings.

A certificate certifying compliance with the above is to be submitted by the licensed plumber on completion of works.

[DUR2555]

79. Where two (2) or more premises are connected by means of a single water service pipe, individual water meters shall be installed to each premise beyond the single Council water meter.

[DUR2615]

80. Sedimentation and erosion control measures shall be placed and maintained to the satisfaction of the General Manager.

[DURNS01]

81. Fixed bollards (or equivalent) shall be provided between the proposed car wash bays and Casuarina Way to prevent vehicles from entering or exiting the site in this location.

[DURNS02]

82. Landscaping of the subject site is to be undertaken in accordance with Landscaping Concept Plans (Sheets 1 to 11) dated May 2009 prepared by Bizscapes unless otherwise authorised by the General Manager or his delegate.

[DURNS03]

PRIOR TO ISSUE OF OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE

83. Prior to issue of an occupation certificate, all works/actions/inspections and the like required at that stage by other conditions or approved management plans or the like shall be completed in accordance with those conditions or plans.

[POC0005]

84. A person must not commence occupation or use of the whole or any part of a new building or structure (within the meaning of Section 109H(4)) unless an occupation certificate has been issued in relation to the building or part (maximum 25 penalty units).

[POC0205]

85. Prior to occupation of the building the property street number is to be clearly identified on the site by way of painted numbering on the street gutter within 1 metre of the access point to the property.

The street number is to be on a white reflective background professionally painted in black numbers 100mm high.

On rural properties or where street guttering is not provided the street number is to be readily identifiable on or near the front entrance to the site.

For multiple allotments having single access points, or other difficult to identify properties, specific arrangements should first be made with Council and emergency services before street number identification is provided.

The above requirement is to assist in property identification by emergency services and the like. Any variations to the above are to be approved by Council prior to the carrying out of the work.

[POC0265]

86. Prior to the issue of a final occupation certificate adequate proof and/or documentation is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority to identify that all commitment on the BASIX "Schedule of Commitments" have been complied with.

[POC0435]

87. All landscaping work is to be completed in accordance with the approved plans prior to any use or occupation of the building.

[POC0475]

88. Prior to the occupation or use of any building and prior to the issue of any occupation certificate, including an interim occupation certificate a final inspection report is to be obtained from Council in relation to the plumbing and drainage works.

[POC1045]

89. Prior to occupation of any building and prior to the issue of an occupation certificate Council shall be provided with a report by a suitably qualified person which confirms that construction elements utilised in the various buildings comply with the report, Residential Development lot 238 Saltwater Crescent, Kingscliff, Acoustic Design Review, Ron Rumble P/L July 2008.

[POCNS01]

USE

90. The use to be conducted so as not to cause disruption to the amenity of the locality, particularly by way of the emission of noise, dust and odours or the like.

[USE0125]

91. Except as may be expressly provided in a licence approval under the Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997 (POEO) Act, the licence holder must comply with section 120 of the POEO Act 1997 prohibiting the pollution of waters.

[USE0155]

92. All externally mounted air conditioning units and other mechanical plant or equipment are to be located so that any noise impact due to their operation which may be or is likely to be experienced by any neighbouring premises is minimised. Notwithstanding this requirement all air conditioning units and other mechanical plant and or equipment is to be acoustically treated or shielded where considered necessary to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate such that the operation of any air conditioning unit, mechanical plant and or equipment does not result in the emission of offensive or intrusive noise.

[USE0175]

93. All externally mounted artificial lighting, including security lighting, is to be shielded to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate where necessary or required so as to prevent the spill of light or glare creating a nuisance to neighbouring or adjacent premises.

[USE0225]

- 94. All plant and equipment installed or used in or on the premises: -
 - (a) Must be maintained in a proper and efficient condition, and
 - (b) Must be operated in a proper and efficient manner.

In this condition, "plant and equipment" includes drainage systems, infrastructure, pollution control equipment and fuel burning equipment.

[USE0315]

95. All commercial / industrial / residential wastes shall be collected, stored and disposed of in accordance with any approved Waste Management Plan or to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate.

[USE0875]

96. The premises shall be maintained in a clean and tidy manner.

[USE0965]

97. The keeping of dogs, cats or other animals on the property is to be in accordance with any relevant 88B Instrument requirements.

[USE1245]

- 98. Swimming Pools (Building)
 - (a) It is the responsibility of the pool owner to ensure that the pool fencing continues to provide the level of protection required regardless of and in response to any activity or construction on the adjoining premises. Due regard must be given to the affect that landscaping will have on the future effectiveness of the security fencing. (Section 7 Swimming Pool Act 1992).
 - (b) The resuscitation poster must be permanently displayed in close proximity to the swimming pool. (Section 17 Swimming Pool Act 1992).
 - (c) Warning notices required under Part 3 of the Swimming Pool Regulations 2008 shall be maintained at all times.

[USE1295]

99. Any water stored within on site water storage tanks shall not be utilised for potable purposes. Appropriate signage shall be provided to the satisfaction of the General Manager.

[USENS01]

100. All shared community facilities shall be maintained in a clean and tidy at all times.

[USENS02]

101. Collection points for domestic waste from the development are not to restrict access to the bus stop located on Casuarina Way.

[USENS03]

102. If the subdivision certificate at any stage is to be released prior to construction of the proposed dwellings, an appropriate restriction as to user is to be placed on the title of each lot stating that a dwelling may only be constructed on the lot in accordance with DA08/0911. [USENS04]

PRIOR TO ISSUE OF SUBDIVISION CERTIFICATE

103. Prior to issue of a subdivision certificate, all works/actions/inspections/ conditions of consent associated with the subdivisional component of the development and the Construction Certificate for Civil Works shall be completed in accordance with those conditions or plans.

[PSC0005]

104. A certificate of compliance (CC) under Sections 305, 306 and 307 of the Water Management Act 2000 is to be obtained from Council to verify that the necessary requirements for the supply of water and sewerage to the development have been made with the Tweed Shire Council.

Pursuant to Section 109J of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 a Subdivision Certificate shall NOT be issued by a Certifying Authority unless all Section 64 Contributions have been paid and the Certifying Authority has sighted Council's "Contribution Sheet" and a "Certificate of Compliance" signed by an authorised officer of Council.

Annexed hereto is an information sheet indicating the procedure to follow to obtain a Certificate of Compliance:

Water DSP6:	17.2 ET @ \$10709 per ET	\$184,194.80
South Kingscliff Water Levy:	17.2 ET @ 248.4 per ET	\$4,272.00
Sewer Kingscliff:	17.6 ET @ \$5146 per ET	\$90,569.60

These charges to remain fixed for a period of twelve (12) months from the date of this consent and thereafter in accordance with the rates applicable in Council's adopted Fees and Charges current at the time of payment.

A CURRENT COPY OF THE CONTRIBUTION FEE SHEET ATTACHED TO THIS CONSENT <u>MUST</u> BE PROVIDED AT THE TIME OF PAYMENT.

Note: The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act 2000 to be certified by an Accredited Certifier.

[PSC0165]

105. Section 94 Contributions

Payment of the following contributions pursuant to Section 94 of the Act and the relevant Section 94 Plan.

Pursuant to Section 109J of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 a Subdivision Certificate shall NOT be issued by a Certifying Authority unless all Section 94 Contributions have been paid and the Certifying Authority has sighted Council's "Contribution Sheet" signed by an authorised officer of Council.

A CURRENT COPY OF THE CONTRIBUTION FEE SHEET ATTACHED TO THIS CONSENT <u>MUST</u> BE PROVIDED AT THE TIME OF PAYMENT.

These charges include indexation provided for in the S94 Plan and will remain fixed for a period of 12 months from the date of this consent and thereafter in accordance with the rates applicable in the current version/edition of the relevant Section 94 Plan current at the time of the payment.

A copy of the Section 94 contribution plans may Civic and Cultural Centres, Tumbulgum Road Brett Street, Tweed Heads.	
(a) Tweed Road Contribution Plan:	
110.5 Trips @ \$955 per Trips	\$105,528
(\$868 base rate + \$87 indexation)	
S94 Plan No. 4	
Sector7_4	
(b) Shirewide Library Facilities:	
17 ET @ \$374 per ET	\$6,358
(\$374 base rate + \$0 indexation)	
S94 Plan No. 11	
(c) Bus Shelters:	
17 ET @ \$26 per ET	\$442
(\$26 base rate + \$0 indexation)	
S94 Plan No. 12	
(d) Eviron Cemetery:	
17 ET @ \$131 per ET	\$2,227
(\$131 base rate + \$0 indexation)	
S94 Plan No. 13	
(e) Community Facilities (Tweed Coast - North	ו)
17 ET @ \$492 per ET	\$8,364
(\$492 base rate + \$0 indexation)	
S94 Plan No. 15	
(f) Emergency Facilities (Surf Lifesaving):	
17 ET @ \$200 per ET	\$3,400
(\$200 base rate + \$0 indexation)	
S94 Plan No. 16	
(g) Extensions to Council Administration Office	es
& Technical Support Facilities	
17 ET @ \$1996.8 per ET	\$33,945.60
(\$1996.8 base rate + \$0 indexation)	
S94 Plan No. 18	

(h)	Cycleways:	
	17 ET @ \$352 per ET	\$5,984
	(\$352 base rate + \$0 indexation)	
	S94 Plan No. 22	
(i)	Regional Open Space (Casual)	
	17 ET @ \$855 per ET	\$14,535
	(\$855 base rate + \$0 indexation)	
	S94 Plan No. 26	
(j)	Regional Open Space (Structured):	
	17 ET @ \$2327 per ET	\$39,559
	(\$2327 base rate + \$0 indexation)	
	S94 Plan No. 26	

[PSC0175]

106. Prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate a defect liability bond (in cash or unlimited time Bank Guarantee) shall be lodged with Council.

The bond shall be based on 5% of the value of the works (minimum as tabled in Council's fees and charges current at the time of payment) which will be held by Council for a period of 6 months from the date on which the Subdivision Certificate is issued. It is the responsibility of the proponent to apply for refund following the remedying of any defects arising within the 6 month period.

[PSC0215]

107. A bond shall be lodged prior to the issue of the subdivision certificate to ensure that the landscaping is maintained by the developer for a period of 6 months from the date of issue of a Subdivision Certificate. The amount of the bond shall be 20% of the estimated cost of the landscaping or \$3000 whichever is the greater.

[PSC0235]

108. Prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate, Works as Executed Plans of the constructed access road and the constructed civil services to all properties associated with the development shall be submitted in accordance with the provisions of Tweed Shire Council Development Control Plan A5 - Subdivisions Manual and Councils Development Design and Construction Specification, D13 -Engineering Plans.

The plans are to be endorsed by a Registered Surveyor OR a Consulting Engineer Certifying that:

- (a) all drainage lines, sewer lines, services and structures are wholly contained within the relevant easement created by the subdivision;
- (b) the plans accurately reflect the Work as Executed.

Note: Where works are carried out by Council on behalf of the developer it is the responsibility of the <u>DEVELOPER</u> to prepare and submit works-as-executed plans.

[PSC0735]

109. A Subdivision Certificate will not be issued by the General Manager until such time as all conditions associated with the subdivision component of this Development Consent, including the construction of all services to all properties within the development and the construction of the access road have been complied with.

[PSC0825]

- 110. The creation of easements for services, rights of carriageway and restrictions as to user as may be applicable under Section 88B of the Conveyancing Act including (but not limited to) the following:
 - (a) Easements for sewer, water supply and drainage over ALL public services/infrastructure on private property.
 - (b) A Restriction As To User requiring that all roofwater from houses, buildings or structures shall be discharged to an approved infiltration pit located on the subject property. The infiltration pit shall be approved by the Principle Certifying Authority.

Pursuant to Section 88BA of the Conveyancing Act (as amended) the Instrument creating the right of carriageway/easement to drain water shall make provision for maintenance of the right of carriageway/easement by the owners from time to time of the land benefited and burdened and are to share costs equally or proportionally on an equitable basis.

Any Section 88B Instrument creating restrictions as to user, rights of carriageway or easements which benefit Council shall contain a provision enabling such restrictions, easements or rights of way to be revoked, varied or modified only with the consent of Council.

Privately owned infrastructure on community land may be subject to the creation of statutory restrictions, easements etc in accordance with the Community Land Development Act, Strata Titles Act, Conveyancing Act, or other applicable legislation.

[PSC0835]

111. Council's standard "Asset Creation Form" shall be completed (including all quantities and unit rates) and submitted to Council with the application for Subdivision Certificate.

[PSC0855]

112. Where new state survey marks and/or permanent marks are placed a copy of the locality sketch relating to the marks shall be submitted to Council within three months of registration of the Subdivision Certificate in accordance with the Survey Practices Regulation.

[PSC0865]

113. Prior to registration of the plan of subdivision, a Subdivision Certificate shall be obtained.

The following information must accompany an application:

- (a) original plan of subdivision prepared by a registered surveyor and 7 copies of the original plan together with any applicable 88B Instrument and application fees in accordance with the current Fees and Charges applicable at the time of lodgement.
- (b) all detail as tabled within Tweed Shire Council Development Control Plan, Part A5 - Subdivision Manual, CL 5.7.6 and Councils Application for Subdivision Certificate including the attached notes.

Note: The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Supplies Authorities Act, 1987 to be certified by an Accredited Certifier.

[PSC0885]

- 114. Prior to the application for a Subdivision Certificate a Compliance Certificate or Certificates shall be obtained from Council OR an accredited certifier for the following:-
 - (a) Compliance Certificate Roads
 - (b) Compliance Certificate Water Reticulation
 - (c) Compliance Certificate Sewerage Reticulation
 - (d) Compliance Certificate Drainage

Note:

- All compliance certificate applications must be accompanied by documentary evidence from the developers Subdivision Works Accredited Certifier (SWAC) certifying that the specific work for which a certificate is sought has been completed in accordance with the terms of the development consent, the construction certificate, Tweed Shire Council's Development Control Plan Part A5 - Subdivisions Manual and Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications.
- The EP&A Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act 2000 to be certified by an "accredited certifier".

[PSC0915]

115. The six (6) months Defects Liability Period commences upon the registration of the Plan of Subdivision.

[PSC0925]

116. Prior to issuing a Subdivision Certificate, reticulated water supply and outfall sewerage reticulation (including household connections) shall be provided to all lots within the subdivision in accordance with Tweed Shire Council's Development Control Plan Part A5 -Subdivisions Manual, Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications and the Construction Certificate approval.

Fire Hydrants spacing, sizing and pressures shall comply with Council's DCP – Section A5 – Subdivision Manual, associated Development Design and Construction Specifications and AS2419.1-2005. Location of hydrants to be appropriately marked with standard blue reflectors on road pavement.

A new sewer manhole shall be constructed off the existing sewer main stub in western corner of the site. This manhole will become public infrastructure. All internal sewer infrastructure servicing the development from this manhole will become private infrastructure. An easement for drainage of sewer, benefiting Council must extend a minimum of 1.0 beyond this manhole.

The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act, 2000 to be certified by an Accredited Certifier.

[PSC1115]

117. The production of written evidence from the local telecommunications supply authority certifying that the provision and commissioning of underground telephone supply at the front boundary of the allotment has been completed.

[PSC1165]

- 118. Electricity
 - (a) The production of written evidence from the local electricity supply authority certifying that reticulation of underground electricity has been completed; and
 - (b) The reticulation to include the provision of fully installed electric street lights to the relevant Australian standard.

[PSC1185]

119. Prior to the issue of a subdivision certificate, the applicant shall produce a copy of the "satisfactory inspection report" issued by Council for all s68h2 permanent stormwater quality control devices.

[PSCNS01]

120. Prior to issue of Subdivision Certificate a final Community Management Statement is to be submitted too and approved by Council. The statement is to include provisions for (but not be limited to) the use of the access road by emergency services, bona fide members of the public and public authorities.

The statement must also provide a Utility Services plan, showing works as executed (WAE).

[PSCNS02]

121. The applicant shall formally lodge a S96 application for DA02/1422 to amend and update the approved Staging Plan for SALT, prior to the release of a subdivision certificate for Stage 3.

[PSCNS03]

The Motion was Carried

FOR VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr D Holdom, Cr K Skinner, Cr J van Lieshout, Cr W Polglase AGAINST VOTE - Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne

12 [PR-CM] Development Application DA05/0824.07 for a Section 96 Amendment to DA05/0824 for Multi Dwelling Housing Comprising Four (4) Units at Lot 4 Section 2 DP 7309, No. 26 Seaview Street, Kingscliff

320

Cr D Holdom Cr K Skinner

RESOLVED that:

- A. Development Application DA05/0824.07 for a Section 96 amendment to DA05/0824 for multi dwelling housing comprising four (4) units at Lot 4 Section 2 DP 7309, No. 26 Seaview Street, Kingscliff be approved and the consent be amended as follows:
 - 1. Condition No. 1 be deleted and replaced with Condition No. 1A which reads as follows:

1A The development shall be completed in accordance with the Statement of Environmental Effects and Plan Nos 62531 sheet 1-4 of 7 inclusive prepared by Gordon Bismire and dated 09/02/07 (revised 24/02/09), Plan Nos 62531 sheet 5 of 7 prepared by Gordon Bismire and dated 09/03/09 (revised 07/07/09), Plan Nos 62531 sheet 1 of 1 prepared by Gordon Bismire and dated 09/03/09 (revised 07/07/09), Plan Nos 62531 sheet 1 of 1 prepared by Gordon Bismire and dated 09/03/09 (revised 07/07/09), Plan Nos 62531 sheet 1 of 1 prepared by Gordon Bismire and dated 09/03/09 (revised 07/07/09), Plan Nos LP01 prepared by Boyds Bay Landscape & Environmental and dated 11.03.09, (as amended in Red on the approved plans) except where varied by the conditions of this consent.

[GEN0005]

- 2. The addition of Condition Nos 6.1 and 76.1:
 - 6.1 Details of natural ventilation be provided for each of the laundries of Units 1-4 to the satisfaction of the Director Planning and Regulation.

[GENNS03]

76.1Prior to the issue of an occupation certificate a surveyor's report prepared by a registered surveyor is to be submitted to Council detailing the height of the building at all relevant points as detailed on the approved plans Plan Nos 62531 sheet 1-4 of 7 inclusive prepared by Gordon Bismire and dated 09/02/07 (revised 24/02/09), Plan Nos 62531 sheet 5 of 7 prepared by Gordon Bismire and dated 09/03/09 (revised 07/07/09), Plan Nos 62531 sheet 1 of 1 prepared by Gordon Bismire and dated 09/03/09 (revised 07/07/09), (as amended in Red on the approved plans) to the satisfaction of Council's General Manager or his delegate. All levels are to be provided in Australian Height Datum.

[POCNS03]

- 76.2 The two Norfolk Pine trees located on the eastern end of the subject site adjacent to Seaview Street, as identified on Plan Nos LP01 prepared by Boyds Bay Landscape and Environmental and dated 11.03.09, (as amended in Red on the approved plans) are to be removed prior to the issuing of an occupation certificate, at the proponents' expense. It is the proponents' responsibility to ensure that a suitably qualified and experienced person in tree removal is used for the removal of the two Norfolk Pine trees
- B. A Penalty Infringement Notice for the sum of \$1500 be issued to Gordon Bismire Builder for the non-compliance with Development Consent DA05/0824.

- C. The applicant be advised that if the rectification works have not commenced within 30 days from the date of this amended consent Council will commence Class 5 Criminal proceedings in the Land and Environment Court. Any additional breaches of the development consent as amended will result in Council commencing Class 5 Criminal proceedings in the Land and Environment Court.
- D. Attachment 1 is CONFIDENTIAL in accordance with Section 10A(2)(g) of the Local Government Act 1993, because it contains advice concerning litigation, or advice that would otherwise be privileged from production in legal proceedings on the ground of legal professional privilege.

The Motion was **Carried**

FOR VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr D Holdom, Cr K Skinner, Cr J van Lieshout, Cr W Polglase AGAINST VOTE - Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne

13 [PR-CM] Development Application DA04/0580.15 for an Amendment to Development Consent No. DA04/0580 for Retail Shops at Lot A DP 380558; Lot 1 DP 772440; Lot B DP 380558; Lot 1 DP 1104696; Lot 1 SP 77979, No. 10-12; 14 & 16 Brisbane Street, Murwillumbah

321

Cr D Holdom Cr P Youngblutt

RESOLVED that Development Application DA04/0580.15 for an amendment to Development Consent No. DA04/0580 for retail shops at Lot A DP 380558; Lot 1 DP 772440; Lot B DP 380558; Lot 1 DP 1104696; Lot 1 SP 77979, No. 10-16 Brisbane Street, Murwillumbah be approved and the conditions be amended as follows: -

- 1. Delete Condition No. 1B and replace it with Condition No. 1C which reads as follows: -
 - 1C. The development shall be completed in accordance with the Statement of Environmental Effects and Plan No's P478WD-01 (Rev C); WD-02 (Rev C); WD-03 (Rev C); WD-04 (Rev C); WD-05 (Rev C); and WD-06 (Rev A) prepared by Glen Petersen Architects and dated 18/07/05, except where modified by Plan No. P478WD-02 (Rev H) dated 5 December 2005, <u>except where modified by Plan No.</u> <u>SH1/2-4309 (as highlighted)</u>, prepared by Mina Drafting Pty Ltd and <u>dated 18 August 2009 (2 Sheets)</u>, except where varied by these conditions.
- 2. Delete Condition No. 18A and replace it with Condition No. 18AA which reads as follows:-

- 18AA. Section 94 Contributions
 - (i) Payment of the following contributions pursuant to Section 94 of the Act and the relevant Section 94 Plan.

Pursuant to Clause 146 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulations, 2000, a Construction Certificate for the outdoor area adjacent to Shop 1 shall NOT be issued by a Certifying Authority unless all Section 94 Contributions have been paid and the Certifying Authority has sighted Council's "Contribution Sheet" signed by an authorised officer of Council.

These charges will remain fixed for a period of 12 months from the date of this consent and thereafter in accordance with the rates applicable in the current version/edition of the relevant Section 94 Plan current at the time of the payment.

A copy of the Section 94 contribution plans may be inspected at the Civic and Cultural Centres, Tumbulgum Road, Murwillumbah and Brett Street, Tweed Heads.

a. Tweed Road Contribution Plan: \$19,479

S94 Plan No. 4 (Version 4.0)

Sector9_4

b. Shirewide Car Parking

2 space/s @ \$15907 per space/s \$31814

(\$0 base rate + \$15907 indexation)

S94 Plan No. 23

- 3. The following new GENERAL condition are to be ADDED as Condition 6H and 6I:
 - 6H. A construction certificate is required for the proposed roof structure over the outdoor area adjacent to Shop 1.
 - 6I. The construction certificate shall incorporate details of the fire rated wall which is required along the eastern external boundary of the proposed outdoor area, in accordance with the provisions of the Building Code of Australia (BCA).
- 4. The following new PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE condition is to be ADDED as Condition 18C:
 - 18C. A certificate of compliance (CC) under Sections 305, 306 and 307 of the Water Management Act 2000 is to be obtained from Council to verify that the necessary requirements for the supply of water and sewerage to the development have been made with the Tweed Shire Council.

Pursuant to Clause 146 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulations, 2000, a Construction Certificate shall NOT be issued by a Certifying Authority unless all Section 64 Contributions applicable to the outdoor area adjacent to Shop 1 have been paid and the Certifying Authority has sighted Council's "Contribution Sheet" and a "Certificate of Compliance" signed by an authorised officer of Council.

Annexed hereto is an information sheet indicating the procedure to follow to obtain a Certificate of Compliance:

Outdoor Area Adjacent to Shop 1

Water DSP2: 0.0936 ET @ \$10709 per ET \$1002.40

Sewer Murwillumbah: 0.2114 ET @ \$5146 per ET \$1087.90

These charges to remain fixed for a period of twelve (12) months from the date of this consent and thereafter in accordance with the rates applicable in Council's adopted Fees and Charges current at the time of payment.

A CURRENT COPY OF THE CONTRIBUTION FEE SHEET ATTACHED TO THIS CONSENT <u>MUST</u> BE PROVIDED AT THE TIME OF PAYMENT.

Note: The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act 2000 to be certified by an Accredited Certifier.

- 5. The following new PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE condition is to be ADDED as Condition 18D:
 - 18D. Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate for the roof structure over the outdoor area adjacent to Shop 1, documentation is to be submitted demonstrating that the Right of Carriageway over the outdoor area has been extinguished, to the satisfaction of Council's General Manager or his delegate.

The Motion was **Carried**

FOR VOTE - Voting - Unanimous

14 [PR-CM] Fees in Relation to Construction Certificate Applications

322

Cr K Skinner Cr J van Lieshout

RESOLVED that Council: -

- 1. Approves the public exhibition of the proposal to increase the Construction Certificate fee for all classes of buildings including the flat rate for single dwellings by \$50.00.
- 2. Notes that a further report will be submitted to Council following the completion of the public exhibition referred to in (1) above, seeking final Council endorsement of the proposed fee increases.
- 3. Advises Coastline Building Certification Group Pty Ltd that their submission has been reviewed and a marginal increase is proposed to Construction Certificates however Council considers that a flat fee for single dwellings and alterations and additions to single dwellings is equitable due to the manner in which these applications are assessed.

The Motion was **Carried**

FOR VOTE - Voting - Unanimous

15 [PR-CM] Alcohol Free Zones

323

Cr K Skinner Cr P Youngblutt

RESOLVED that Council:

1. Approves the establishment and timeframes of alcohol-free zones in accordance with section 644B of the Local Government Act 1993, within the Tweed Heads, Tweed Heads South, Kingscliff, Salt, Cabarita Beach and Murwillumbah areas over roads, footpaths and public carparks for a maximum period of four (4) years expiring no later than 1 December 2013 as follows:

TWEED HEADS

- Wharf Street between Bay Street and the Queensland border
- Bay Street, east of Wharf Street to John Follent Park
- Chris Cunningham Park public carpark

24 hours per day, all days

TWEED HEADS SOUTH

 Public car park adjoining South Tweed Swimming Pool, Home and Community Care (HACC) and skate park

24 hours per day, all days

KINGSCLIFF

- Marine Parade between Turnock Street and Cudgen Creek
- Turnock Street between Marine Parade and Pearl Street
- Pearl Street between Turnock Street and Seaview Street
- Seaview Street between Pearl Street and Marine Parade
- Lions Park and Faulks Park public carparks and the public carpark adjoining Kingscliff Memorial Park

24 hours per day, all days

<u>SALT</u>

Bells Boulevarde

Between the hours of 4pm December 31 to 10am January 1

CABARITA BEACH

- Pandanus Parade
- Public carpark between Palm Avenue and Pandanus Parade

24 hours per day, all days

<u>MURWILLUMBAH</u>

- Queensland Road between 'Harry Williams Gate' of the Murwillumbah Showgrounds and Murwillumbah Street
- Public car park area near Mount Saint Patricks School on Queensland Road
- Bent Street between Queensland Road and Church Street
- Church Street between Bent Street and Queen Street
- Alice Street between Queen Street and Church Street
- Church Lane
- Police Lane
- Bruce Lane
- Queen Street between Murwillumbah Street and Church Street
- Murwillumbah Street between Nullum Street and Queen Street
- Wharf Street between Queen Street and Tumbulgum Road
- Proudfoots Lane
- Public carparks between Wollumbin Street and Proudfoots Lane

- Commercial Road between Wharf Street and King Street
- King Street between Commercial Road and Brisbane Street
- Public carpark between Lavender Lane and King Street
- Lavender Lane
- Brisbane Street between Murwillumbah Street and Condong Street
- Condong Street between Brisbane Street and Nullum Street
- Nullum Street between Condong Street and Murwillumbah Street
- Wollumbin Street between Nullum Lane and Commercial Road
- Nullum Lane between Wollumbin Street and Byangum Road
- Byangum Road between Nullum Lane and Muwillumbah Street
- Alma Street between Commercial Road and Tweed Valley Road
- Tumbulgum Road between Wharf Street and Racecourse Road
- Public carparks adjoining Tweed Shire Council civic centre and swimming pool
- Sunnyside Lane
- Factory Lane between King Street and Wollumbin Street
- Budd Park public carpark
- Knox Park public carpark
- Red Cross Hall public carpark

24 hours per day, all days

Excluding those businesses approved by Council for the purposes of footpath dining whilst those businesses are trading.

- 2. Delegates to the General Manager authority to vary or suspend the zones for special circumstances.
- 3. A report be brought forward addressing the incorporation of all of the public area in and around Norries Headland as an alcohol free zone applicable from sunset to sunrise.

The Motion was **Carried**

FOR VOTE - Unanimous

16 [PR-CM] Progress Report for the 2009/10 Planning Reform Unit Work Program

324

Cr P Youngblutt Cr K Skinner

PROPOSED that Council receives and notes the Progress Report for the 2009/10 Planning Reform Unit Work Program.

325

AMENDMENT

Cr J van Lieshout Cr W Polglase

RESOLVED that the Planning Reform Unit Work Program be amended to enable Council to consider Boyds Bay Garden World site as a short term priority.

The Amendment was **Carried**

FOR VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr K Skinner, Cr J van Lieshout, Cr W Polglase AGAINST VOTE - Cr D Holdom, Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne

The Amendment on becoming the Motion was **Carried** - (Minute No 325 refers)

FOR VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr K Skinner, Cr J van Lieshout, Cr W Polglase AGAINST VOTE - Cr D Holdom, Cr K Milne, Cr B Longland

17 [PR-CM] Variations to Development Standards under State Environmental Planning Policy No. 1 - Development Standards

326

Cr P Youngblutt Cr K Skinner

RESOLVED that Council notes for the month of September 2009 that there are no Variations to Development Standards under State Environmental Planning Policy No 1 - Development Standards.

The Motion was **Carried**

FOR VOTE - Unanimous

18 [PR-CM] Development Application DA09/0006 for a Four (4) Lot Industrial Subdivision, Construction of Part of Ozone Street and Associated Drainage at Lot 1 DP 102255, No. 16-18 Ozone Street, Chinderah

327

Cr D Holdom Cr P Youngblutt

RESOLVED that Development Application DA09/0006 for a four (4) lot industrial subdivision at Lot 1 DP 102255, No. 16-18 Ozone Street Chinderah be approved subject to the following conditions: -

"DEFERRED COMMENCEMENT"

<u>This consent shall not operate</u> until the applicant satisfies the consent authority by producing satisfactory evidence relating to the matters set out in Schedule "A". Such evidence is to be provided within 6 months of the date of notification.

Upon the consent authority being satisfied as to compliance with the matters set out in Schedule "A". The consent shall become operative and take effect from the date of notification under Section 67 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulations subject to the conditions set out in Schedule "B".

SCHEDULE "A"

Conditions imposed pursuant to Section 80(3) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 and Section 67 of the Regulations as amended.

- A. A Habitat Restoration Plan relating to a specific site and approved by Council's General Manager or his delegate which demonstrates adequate replacement on a 2 for 1 basis of the Swamp Oak Floodplain Forest impacted by the proposed development. The Habitat Restoration Plan must include:
 - a schedule and timing of works to be undertaken
 - a statement of commitment by the consent holder to funding the proposed works
 - a statement of commitment by the consent holder that the works will be completed by qualified and experienced bush regeneration personnel.

B. An Aboriginal archaeological heritage assessment shall be prepared by a suitably qualified and experienced consultant to the satisfaction of Council's General Manager or his delegate to determine the impact of the proposed subdivision and road works. The assessment shall include consultation with the Tweed Byron Local Aboriginal Land Council and any other related stakeholders. The assessment shall also include any mitigation and management measures where required.

SCHEDULE B

NOTE: THIS PART OF THE CONSENT WILL NOT BECOME OPERABLE UNTIL COUNCIL ADVISES THAT THE MATTERS CONTAINED IN SCHEDULE A ARE SATISFIED.

GENERAL

1. The development shall be completed in accordance with the Statement of Environmental Effects and Plan Nos: SK20090604 (9m wide road) and SK20090610 (road layout) prepared by Opus Qantec McWilliam and dated June 2009, Figure 6.0 (9m wide road option 2) as amended in red, prepared by Opus Qantec McWilliam and dated November 2008, DWG 00926-01 (Proposed Subdivision Plan) prepared by Planit Consulting and dated October 2008, and the Habitat Restoration Plan approved under Schedule A of this consent, except where varied by the conditions of this consent.

[GEN0005]

2. The subdivision is to be carried out in accordance with Tweed Shire Council Development Control Plan Part A5 - Subdivision Manual and Councils adopted Development Design and Construction Specifications.

[GEN0125]

3. Approval is given subject to the location of, protection of, and/or any necessary modifications to any existing public utilities situated within or adjacent to the subject property.

[GEN0135]

4. The level of fill placed on the site shall not exceed RL 2.0m AHD.

[GENNS01]

PRIOR TO ISSUE OF CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

5. Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate, a cash bond or bank guarantee (unlimited in time) shall be lodged with Council for an amount based on 1% of the value of the works (minimum \$1,552).

The bond may be called up at any time and the funds used to rectify any non-compliance with the conditions of this consent which are not being addressed to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate. The bond will be refunded, if not expended, when the final Subdivision Certificate is issued.

[PCC0275]

6. In accordance with Section 109F(i) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (as amended), a construction certificate for SUBDIVISION WORKS OR BUILDING WORKS shall NOT be issued until any long service levy payable under Section 34 of the Building and Construction Industry Long Service Payments Act, 1986 (or where such levy is payable by instalments, the first instalment of the levy) has been paid. Council is authorised to accept payment. Where payment has been made elsewhere, proof of payment is to be provided.

[PCC0285]

7. All fill is to be graded at a minimum of 1% so that it drains to the street or other approved permanent drainage system and where necessary, perimeter drainage is to be provided. The construction of any retaining wall or cut/fill batter must at no time result in additional ponding occurring within neighbouring properties.

All earthworks shall be contained wholly within the subject land. Detailed engineering plans of cut/fill levels and perimeter drainage shall be submitted with a S68 stormwater application for Council approval.

[PCC0485]

8. A traffic control plan in accordance with AS1742 and RTA publication "Traffic Control at Work Sites" Version 2 shall be prepared by an RTA accredited person and shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to issue of the Construction Certificate. Safe public access shall be provided at all times.

[PCC0865]

9. The proponent shall submit plans and specifications with an application for construction certificate for the following civil works and any associated subsurface overland flow and piped stormwater drainage structures designed in accordance with Councils adopted Design and Construction specifications.

URBAN ROAD

(a) Construction of an urban bitumen sealed road formation with upright kerb & gutter to a 9m sealed pavement width within a 17m road reserve width as per Council's road works standards for an access street with a bus route.

INTERSECTION

(b) Construction of an intersection layout for a basic left turn treatment in accordance with AUSTROADS Pt 5 "Intersections at Grade" giving particular attention to sight distance.

[PCC0875]

- 10. Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate the following detail in accordance with Councils adopted Development Design and Construction Specifications shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority for approval.
 - (a) copies of compliance certificates relied upon
 - (b) four (4) copies of detailed engineering plans and specifications. The detailed plans shall include but are not limited to the following:
 - earthworks
 - roadworks/furnishings
 - stormwater drainage
 - water supply works
 - sewerage works
 - landscaping works
 - sedimentation and erosion management plans
 - location of all service conduits (water, sewer, Country Energy and Telstra)

The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act 2000 and Section 138 of the Roads Act to be certified by an Accredited Certifier.

[PCC0985]

- 11. Permanent stormwater quality treatment shall be provided in accordance with the following:
 - (a) The Construction Certificate Application shall include a detailed stormwater management plan (SWMP) for the occupational or use stage of the development prepared in accordance with Section D7.07 of Councils Development Design Specification D7 – Stormwater Quality.
 - (b) Permanent stormwater quality treatment shall comply with section 5.5.3 of the Tweed Urban Stormwater Quality Management Plan and Councils Development Design Specification D7 – Stormwater Quality.
 - (c) The stormwater and site works shall incorporate water sensitive design principles and where practical, integrated water cycle management. Typical water sensitive features include infiltration, maximising permeable/landscaped areas, stormwater retention /detention/reuse, and use of grass swales in preference to hard engineered drainage systems.
 - (d) Specific Requirements to be detailed within the Construction certificate application include:
 - (i) Shake down area along the haul route immediately before the intersection with the road reserve.

[PCC1105]

- 12. A construction certificate application for works that involve any of the following:-
 - connection of a private stormwater drain to a public stormwater drain
 - installation of stormwater quality control devices
 - erosion and sediment control works

Applications for these works must be submitted on Council's standard s68 stormwater drainage application form accompanied by the required attachments and the prescribed fee.

Where Council is requested to issue a construction certificate for civil works associated with this consent, the abovementioned works can be incorporated as part of the cc application, to enable one single approval to be issued. Separate approval under section 68 of the LG Act will then NOT be required.

[PCC1145]

- 13. Erosion and Sediment Control shall be provided in accordance with the following:
 - (a) The Construction Certificate Application must include a detailed erosion and sediment control plan prepared in accordance with Section D7.07 of *Development Design Specification D7 Stormwater Quality.*
 - (b) Construction phase erosion and sediment control shall be designed, constructed and operated in accordance with *Tweed Shire Council Development Design Specification D7 - Stormwater Quality* and its Annexure A - "Code of Practice for Soil and Water Management on Construction Works".

[PCC1155]

- 14. Where water is to be drawn from Councils reticulated system, the proponent shall: -
 - Make application for the hire of a Tweed Shire Council metered standpipe including Councils nomination of point of extraction.
 - Where a current standpipe approval has been issued application must be made for Councils nomination of a point of extraction specific to the development.
 - Payment of relevant fees in accordance with Councils adopted fees and charges.

[PCC1205]

15. Prior to the issue of a construction certificate the applicant is required to lodge an application to install/operate an onsite sewerage management system (private sewage ejection pump station) under Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993, pay the appropriate fee and be issued with an approval.

[PCC1285]

- 16. Engineering plans and specifications lodged with an application for a construction certificate are to provide detail for the following works: -
 - Common sewer rising main to be accepted as Council infrastructure with each lot to have a private pressure pump station.
 - The pump stations are to be designed within a small compound that includes the control box and concrete slab.
 - A boundary assembly shall be provided for each lot which is no more than 1m from the point on the boundary where the main from the pump station crosses into the road reserve.

 The pump stations and rising main are to be designed in accordance with Council's design and construction specifications and the WSA 07 pressure sewer code of Australia.

[PCCNS01]

17. Prior to issue of a construction certificate a Sediment & Erosion Control Management Plan relating to the access road and open drain shall be provided to Council to the satisfaction of Council's General Manager or delegate.

[PCCNS02]

 Prior to issue of a construction certificate a Water Quality Monitoring Program shall be provided to Council to the satisfaction of Council's General Manager or delegate.

[PCCNS02]

- 19. Adequate transverse drainage shall be provided to connect existing stormwater runoff discharge points from the north of Ozone Street through to the open drain on the southern side of the new carriageway. Details of the transverse drainage shall be submitted with the s68 Stormwater Application for separate Council approval prior to the issue of a construction certificate.
- 20. Roadworks in Ozone Street shall maintain the integrity of the earth bund along the southern boundary of the road reserve.
- 21. Any works associated with the Ozone Street road construction that encroach on private land require the written consent of the affected landholder(s). A copy of the consent(s) shall be submitted to the PCA prior to the works being undertaken.

[PCCNS03]

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK

22. The proponent shall accurately locate and identify any existing sewer main, stormwater line or other underground infrastructure within or adjacent to the site and the Principal Certifying Authority advised of its location and depth prior to commencing works and ensure there shall be no conflict between the proposed development and existing infrastructure prior to start of any works.

[PCW0005]

23. Prior to work commencing, a "Notice of Commencement of Building or Subdivision Work and Appointment of Principal Certifying Authority" shall be submitted to Council at least 2 days prior to work commencing.

[PCW0225]

- 24. Civil work in accordance with a development consent must not be commenced until:-
 - (a) a construction certificate for the civil work has been issued in accordance with Councils adopted Development Design and Construction Specification C101 by:
 - (i) the consent authority, or
 - (ii) an accredited certifier, and
 - (b) the person having the benefit of the development consent:
 - (i) has appointed a principal certifying authority,
 - (ii) has appointed a Subdivision Works Accredited Certifier (SWAC) in accordance with the Building Professionals Board Accreditation Scheme. As a minimum the SWAC shall possess accreditation in the following categories:
 - C4: Accredited Certifier Stormwater management facilities construction compliance
 - C6: Accredited Certifier Subdivision road and drainage construction compliance

The SWAC shall provide documentary evidence to Council demonstrating current accreditation with the Building Professionals Board prior to approval and issue of any Construction Certificate, and

- (iii) has notified the consent authority and the council (if the council is not the consent authority) of the appointment,
- (iv) a sign detailing the project and containing the names and contact numbers of the Developer, Contractor and Subdivision Works Accredited Certifier is erected and maintained in a prominent position at the entry to the site in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications. The sign is to remain in place until the Subdivision Certificate is issued, and
- (c) the person having the benefit of the development consent has given at least 2 days' notice to the council of the person's intention to commence the civil work.

[PCW0815]

25. Prior to commencement of work on the site all erosion and sedimentation control measures are to be installed and operational including the provision of a "shake down" area where required to the satisfaction of the Principal Certifying Authority.

In addition to these measures the core flute sign provided with the stormwater approval under Section 68 of the Local Government Act is to be clearly displayed on the most prominent position of the sediment fence or erosion control device which promotes awareness of the importance of the erosion and sediment controls provided.

This sign is to remain in position for the duration of the project.

[PCW0985]

26. All imported fill material shall be from an approved source. Prior to the commencement of work details of the source of fill, description of material and documentary evidence that the fill material is free from any contaminants shall be submitted to Tweed Shire Council for approval.

[PCWNS01]

27. Prior to the commencement of works on the access road and open drain an inspection is to be arranged with Council's Environmental Health Officer to ensure the implementation of the Acid Sulfate Soil Management Plan prepared by HMC Environmental Consulting Pty Ltd dated June 2009 is undertaken.

[PCWNS02]

28. Prior to the commencement of any demolition works on the site a development application for demolition is to be submitted to and approved by Council.

[PCWNS03]

- 29. Commencement of works in accordance with the approved Habitat Restoration Plan must be demonstrated prior to clearing of the Swamp Oak Floodplain Forest vegetation.
- 30. A permit under s198-202 of the Fisheries Management Act 1994 for dredge and reclamation activities must be obtained prior to commencement of the works.
- 31. A permit under s205 of the Fisheries Management Act 1994 for harm to marine vegetation (seagrass, mangroves, kelp) must be obtained prior to commencement of the works.
- 32. Environmental safeguards (silt curtains, booms etc.) are to be utilised during reconstruction of the drainage line to ensure there is no escape of turbid plumes into the aquatic environment. Erosion and sediment controls must be in place prior to commencing, during and after works.

[PCWNS04]

33. Before commencing any works or using any existing works for the purpose of Temporary Dewatering for Construction Purposes, a Controlled Activity Approval under the Water Management Act 2000 must be obtained from the Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water. The application for the approval must contain sufficient information to show that the development is capable of meeting the objectives and outcomes specified in these conditions.

[PCWNS05]

34. Appropriate measures are to be put in place during the construction and/or demolition period to prevent the transport of sediment from the site. Should any material be transported onto the road or any spills occur it is to be cleaned up prior to cessation of same days work and/or commencement of any rain event.

[DUR2405]

DURING CONSTRUCTION

35. All proposed works are to be carried out in accordance with the conditions of development consent, approved construction certificate, drawings and specifications.

[DUR0005]

36. Construction site work including the entering and leaving of vehicles is limited to the following hours, unless otherwise permitted by Council: -

Monday to Saturday from 7.00am to 6.00pm

No work to be carried out on Sundays or Public Holidays

The proponent is responsible to instruct and control subcontractors regarding hours of work.

[DUR0205]

- 37. All reasonable steps shall be taken to muffle and acoustically baffle all plant and equipment. In the event of complaints from the neighbours, which Council deem to be reasonable, the noise from the construction site is not to exceed the following:
 - A. Short Term Period 4 weeks.

LA eq noise level measured over a period of not less than 15 minutes when the construction site is in operation, must not exceed the background level by more than 20dB(A) at the boundary of the nearest likely affected residence.

B. Long term period - the duration.

LA eq noise level measured over a period of not less than 15 minutes when the construction site is in operation, must not exceed the background level by more than 15dB(A) at the boundary of the nearest affected residence.

[DUR0215]

38. All pumps used for onsite dewatering operations are to be installed on the site in a location that will minimise any noise disturbance to neighbouring or adjacent premises and be acoustically shielded to the satisfaction of Council's General Manager or his delegate so as to prevent the emission of offensive noise as a result of their operation.

[DUR0225]

39. All lots must be graded to prevent the ponding of surface water and be adequately vegetated to prevent erosion from wind and/or water to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate.

[DUR0745]

40. Proposed earthworks shall be carried out in accordance with AS 3798, "Guidelines on Earthworks for Commercial and Residential Developments".

The earthworks shall be monitored by a Registered Geotechnical Testing Consultant to a level 1 standard in accordance with AS 3798. A certificate from a registered Geotechnical Engineer certifying that the filling operations comply with AS3798 shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority upon completion.

[DUR0795]

41. The use of vibratory compaction equipment (other than hand held devices) within 100m of any dwelling house, building or structure is strictly prohibited.

[DUR0815]

42. No soil, sand, gravel, clay or other material shall be disposed of off the site without the prior written approval of Tweed Shire Council General Manager or his delegate.

[DUR0985]

43. The surrounding road carriageways are to be kept clean of any material carried onto the roadway by construction vehicles. Any work carried out by Council to remove material from the roadway will be at the Developers expense and any such costs are payable prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate/Occupation Certificate.

[DUR0995]

- 44. All work associated with this approval is to be carried out so as not to impact on neighbourhood, adjacent premises or the environment. All necessary precautions, covering and protection shall be taken to minimise impact from: -
 - Noise, water or air pollution
 - Minimise impact from dust during filling operations and also from construction vehicles
 - No material is removed from the site by wind

[DUR1005]

45. All practicable measures must be taken to prevent and minimise harm to the environment as a result of the construction, operation and, where relevant, the decommissioning of the development.

[DUR1025]

46. A concrete footpath 1.2 metres wide and 100 millimetres thick is to be constructed on a compacted base along the entire length of the Ozone Street upgrade in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications and Standard Drawing SD013.

Twenty four (24) hours notice is to be given to Council's Engineering & Operations Division before placement of concrete to enable formwork and subgrade to be inspected.

[DUR1735]

47. Where the construction work is on or adjacent to public roads, parks or drainage reserves the development shall provide and maintain all warning signs, lights, barriers and fences in accordance with AS 1742 (Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices). The contractor or property owner shall be adequately insured against Public Risk Liability and shall be responsible for any claims arising from these works.

[DUR1795]

- 48. Before the commencement of the relevant stages of road construction, pavement design detail including reports from a Registered NATA Consultant shall be submitted to Council for approval and demonstrating.
 - (a) That the pavement has been designed in accordance with Tweed Shire Councils Development Design Specification, D2.
 - (b) That the pavement materials to be used comply with the specifications tabled in Tweed Shire Councils Construction Specifications, C242-C245, C247, C248 and C255.
 - (c) That site fill areas have been compacted to the specified standard.

(d) That supervision of Bulk Earthworks has been to Level 1 and frequency of field density testing has been completed in accordance with Table 8.1 of AS 3798-1996.

[DUR1805]

49. Any damage caused to public infrastructure (roads, footpaths, water and sewer mains, power and telephone services etc) during construction of the development shall be repaired in accordance with Councils adopted Design and Construction Specifications prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate and/or prior to any use or occupation of the buildings.

[DUR1875]

50. Tweed Shire Council shall be given a minimum 24 hours notice to carry out the following compulsory inspections in accordance with Tweed Shire Council Development Control Plan, Part A5 – Subdivision Manual, Appendix D. Inspection fees are based on the rates contained in Council's current Fees and Charges:-

Roadworks

- (a) Pre-construction commencement erosion and sedimentation control measures
- (b) Completion of earthworks
- (c) Excavation of subgrade
- (d) Pavement sub-base
- (e) Pavement pre kerb
- (f) Pavement pre seal
- (g) Pathways, footways, bikeways formwork/reinforcement
- (h) Final inspections on maintenance
- (i) Off Maintenance inspection

Water Reticulation, Sewer Reticulation, Drainage

- (a) Excavation
- (b) Bedding
- (c) Laying/jointing
- (d) Manholes/pits
- (e) Backfilling
- (f) Permanent erosion and sedimentation control measures

- (g) Drainage channels
- (h) Final inspection on maintenance
- (i) Off maintenance

Sewer Pump Station

- (a) Excavation
- (b) Formwork/reinforcement
- (c) Hydraulics
- (d) Mechanical/electrical
- (e) Commissioning on maintenance
- (f) Off maintenance

Council's role is limited to the above mandatory inspections and does <u>NOT</u> include supervision of the works, which is the responsibility of the Developers Supervising Consulting Engineer.

The EP&A Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act 2000 to be certified by an "accredited certifier".

[DUR1895]

51. The contractor is to maintain a copy of the development consent and Construction Certificate approval including plans and specifications on the site at all times.

[DUR2015]

52. Inter allotment drainage shall be provided to all lots where roof water for future structures cannot be conveyed to the street gutter by gravitational means.

[DUR2285]

 All stormwater gully lintels shall have the following notice cast into the top of the lintel: 'DUMP NO RUBBISH, FLOWS INTO CREEK' or similar wording in accordance with Councils adopted Design and Construction Specification.

[DUR2355]

54. Regular inspections shall be carried out by the Supervising Engineer on site to ensure that adequate erosion control measures are in place and in good condition both during and after construction.

Additional inspections are also required by the Supervising Engineer after each storm event to assess the adequacy of the erosion control measures, make good any erosion control devices and clean up any sediment that has left the site or is deposited on public land or in waterways.

This inspection program is to be maintained until the maintenance bond is released or until Council is satisfied that the site is fully rehabilitated.

[DUR2375]

55. The site shall not be dewatered, unless written approval to carry out dewatering operations is received from the Tweed Shire Council General Manager or his delegate.

[DUR2425]

56. All waters that are to be discharged from the site shall have a pH between 6.5 and 8.5 and suspended solids not greater than 50mg/l. The contractor shall nominate a person responsible for monitoring of the quality of such discharge waters on a daily basis and the results recorded. Such results shall be made available to Council's Environmental Health Officer(s) upon request.

[DUR2435]

57. During construction, a "satisfactory inspection report" is required to be issued by Council for all s68h2 permanent stormwater quality control devices, prior to backfilling. The proponent shall liaise with Councils Engineering and Operations Division to arrange a suitable inspection.

[DUR2445]

58. All works associated with the access road and open drain are to be undertaken in accordance with the Acid Sulfate Soil Management Plan prepared by HMC Environmental Consulting Pty Ltd dated June 2009.

[DURNS01]

59. The approved water quality monitoring program is to be implemented during any earthworks or construction activity for any runoff from the site, and is to continue until stabilisation of any exposed areas.

[DURNS02]

- 60. Vegetation clearing at all locations shall be limited to the minimum necessary for the road alignment, and all works sites, stockpile areas, storage facilities and vehicle parking and maintenance areas shall be located on already disturbed land, avoiding any necessity for the clearing of vegetation for these activities.
- 61. Sand, gravel, silt, topsoil or other materials must not be stockpiled within 50 metres of the water unless surrounded by sediment control measures.

62. All works involving soil or vegetation disturbance shall be undertaken with adequate measures to prevent soil erosion and the entry of sediments into any river, lake, waterbody, wetland or groundwater system.

[DURNS02]

PRIOR TO ISSUE OF SUBDIVISION CERTIFICATE

63. Prior to issue of a subdivision certificate, all works/actions/inspections etc required by other conditions or approved management plans or the like shall be completed in accordance with those conditions or plans.

[PSC0005]

64. A certificate of compliance (CC) under Sections 305, 306 and 307 of the Water Management Act 2000 is to be obtained from Council to verify that the necessary requirements for the supply of water and sewerage to the development have been made with the Tweed Shire Council.

A Subdivision Certificate shall NOT be issued unless the Certifying Authority is satisfied provisions pursuant to Section 109J of the EP&A Act, 1979 have been complied with and the Certifying Authority has sighted Councils contributions sheet and Certificate of Compliance signed by an authorised officer of Council.

Annexed hereto is an information sheet indicating the procedure to follow to obtain a Certificate of Compliance:

Water DSP5:	4.8 ET @ \$10709 per ET	\$51403.20
Sewer Kingscliff:	15.5041 ET @ \$5146 per ET	\$79784.10

These charges to remain fixed for a period of twelve (12) months from the date of this consent and thereafter in accordance with the rates applicable in Council's adopted Fees and Charges current at the time of payment.

A CURRENT COPY OF THE CONTRIBUTION FEE SHEET ATTACHED TO THIS CONSENT MUST BE PROVIDED AT THE TIME OF PAYMENT

The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act 2000 to be certified by an Accredited Certifier.

[PSC0165]

65. Section 94 Contributions

Payment of the following contributions pursuant to Section 94 of the Act and the relevant Section 94 Plan.

Pursuant to Section 109J of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979, a Subdivision Certificate shall NOT be issued by a Certifying Authority unless all Section 94 Contributions have been paid and the Certifying Authority has sighted Council's "Contribution Sheet" signed by an authorised officer of Council.

A CURRENT COPY OF THE CONTRIBUTION FEE SHEET ATTACHED TO THIS CONSENT <u>MUST</u> BE PROVIDED AT THE TIME OF PAYMENT

These charges will remain fixed for a period of 12 months from the date of this consent and thereafter in accordance with the rates applicable in the current version/edition of the relevant Section 94 Plan current at the time of the payment.

A copy of the Section 94 contribution plans may be inspected at the Civic and Cultural Centres, Tumbulgum Road, Murwillumbah and Brett Street, Tweed Heads.

(a) Tweed Road Contribution Plan:

 19.5 Trips @ \$861 per Trips
 \$16790

(\$782 base rate + \$79 indexation)

S94 Plan No. 4

Sector6_4

(b) Extensions to Council Administration Offices

& Technical Support Facilities

0.6001 ET @ \$1996.8 per ET

(\$1996.8 base rate + \$0 indexation)

S94 Plan No. 18

[PSC0175]

\$1198.28

66. Section 94 Contributions

Payment of the following contributions pursuant to Section 94 of the Act and the relevant Section 94 Plan.

Pursuant to Clause 146 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulations, 2000, a Construction Certificate shall NOT be issued by a Certifying Authority unless all Section 94 Contributions have been paid and the Certifying Authority has sighted Council's "Contribution Sheet" signed by an authorised officer of Council. These charges will remain fixed for a period of 12 months from the date of this consent and thereafter in accordance with the rates applicable in the current version/edition of the relevant Section 94 Plan current at the time of the payment.

A copy of the Section 94 contribution plans may be inspected at the Civic and Cultural Centres, Tumbulgum Road, Murwillumbah and Brett Street, Tweed Heads.

Heavy Haulage Component

Payment of a contribution pursuant to Section 94 of the Act and the Heavy Haulage (Extractive materials) provisions of Tweed Road Contribution Plan No. 4 - Version 5 prior to the issue of a construction certificate. The contribution shall be based on the following formula:-

\$Con _{TRCP - Heavy} = Prod. x Dist x \$Unit x (1+Admin.)

where:

\$Con _{TRCP - Heavy} heavy haulage contribution

and:

- Prod. projected demand for extractive material to be hauled to the site over life of project in tonnes
- Dist. average haulage distance of product on Shire roads

(trip one way)

- \$Unit the unit cost attributed to maintaining a road as set out in Section 7.2 (currently 5.4c per tonne per kilometre)
- Admin. Administration component 5% see Section 6.6

[PCC0225/PSC0185]

67. Prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate a defect liability bond (in cash or unlimited time Bank Guarantee) shall be lodged with Council.

The bond shall be based on 5% of the value of the works (minimum as tabled in Council's fees and charges current at the time of payment) which will be held by Council for a period of 6 months from the date on which the Subdivision Certificate is issued. It is the responsibility of the proponent to apply for refund following the remedying of any defects arising within the 6 month period.

[PSC0215]

68. Any damage to property (including pavement damage) is to be rectified to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate PRIOR to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate. Any work carried out by Council to remove material from the roadway will be at the Developers expense and any such costs are payable prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate.

[PSC0725]

 Prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate, Works as Executed Plans shall be submitted in accordance with the provisions of Tweed Shire Council Development Control Plan A5 - Subdivisions Manual and Councils Development Design and Construction Specification, D13 -Engineering Plans.

The plans are to be endorsed by a Registered Surveyor OR a Consulting Engineer Certifying that:

- (a) all drainage lines, sewer lines, services and structures are wholly contained within the relevant easement created by the subdivision;
- (b) the plans accurately reflect the Work as Executed.

Note: Where works are carried out by Council on behalf of the developer it is the responsibility of the <u>DEVELOPER</u> to prepare and submit works-as-executed plans.

[PSC0735]

70. A Subdivision Certificate will not be issued by the General Manager until such time as all conditions of this Development Consent have been complied with.

[PSC0825]

- 71. The creation of easements for services, rights of carriageway and restrictions as to user as may be applicable under Section 88B of the Conveyancing Act including (but not limited to) the following:
 - (a) Easements for sewer, water supply and drainage over ALL public services/infrastructure on private property.
 - (b) A Section 88B restriction to user shall be placed on the land title of each new allotment to limit site coverage of structures and permanent improvements to retain a minimum of 50% of the area available for flood flow.

Pursuant to Section 88BA of the Conveyancing Act (as amended) the Instrument creating the right of carriageway/easement to drain water shall make provision for maintenance of the right of carriageway/easement by the owners from time to time of the land benefited and burdened and are to share costs equally or proportionally on an equitable basis. Any Section 88B Instrument creating restrictions as to user, rights of carriageway or easements which benefit Council shall contain a provision enabling such restrictions, easements or rights of way to be revoked, varied or modified only with the consent of Council.

[PSC0835]

72. Council's standard "Asset Creation Form" shall be completed (including all quantities and unit rates) and submitted to Council with the application for Subdivision Certificate.

[PSC0855]

73. Where new state survey marks and/or permanent marks are placed a copy of the locality sketch relating to the marks shall be submitted to Council within three months of registration of the Subdivision Certificate in accordance with the Survey Practices Regulation.

[PSC0865]

74. Prior to registration of the plan of subdivision, a Subdivision Certificate shall be obtained.

The following information must accompany an application:

- (a) original plan of subdivision prepared by a registered surveyor and 7 copies of the original plan together with any applicable 88B Instrument and application fees in accordance with the current Fees and Charges applicable at the time of lodgement.
- (b) all detail as tabled within Tweed Shire Council Development Control Plan, Part A5 - Subdivision Manual, CL 7.6 and Councils Application for Subdivision Certificate including the attached notes.

Note: The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Supplies Authorities Act, 1987 to be certified by an Accredited Certifier.

[PSC0885]

- 75. Prior to the application for a Subdivision Certificate a Compliance Certificate or Certificates shall be obtained from Council OR an accredited certifier for the following:-
 - (a) Compliance Certificate Roads
 - (b) Compliance Certificate Water Reticulation
 - (c) Compliance Certificate Sewerage Reticulation
 - (d) Compliance Certificate Drainage

Note:

- 1. All compliance certificate applications must be accompanied by documentary evidence from the developers Subdivision Works Accredited Certifier (SWAC) certifying that the specific work for which a certificate is sought has been completed in accordance with the terms of the development consent, the construction certificate, Tweed Shire Council's Development Control Plan Part A5 Subdivisions Manual and Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications.
- 2. The EP&A Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act 2000 to be certified by an "accredited certifier".

[PSC0915]

76. The six (6) months Defects Liability Period commences upon the registration of the Plan of Subdivision.

[PSC0925]

77. Prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate and also prior to the end of defects liability period, a CCTV inspection of the stormwater pipes and sewerage system including joints and junctions will be required to demonstrate that the standard of the stormwater system is acceptable to Council.

Any defects identified by the inspection are to be repaired in accordance with Councils adopted Development Design and Construction Specification.

All costs associated with the CCTV inspection and repairs shall be borne by the applicants.

[PSC1065]

- 78. Prior to issuing a Subdivision Certificate, reticulated water supply and sewerage reticulation shall be provided to all lots within the subdivision in accordance with Tweed Shire Council's Development Control Plan Part A5 Subdivisions Manual, Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications and the Construction Certificate approval.
- 79. The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act, 2000 to be certified by an Accredited Certifier.

[PSC1115]

80. The production of written evidence from the local telecommunications supply authority certifying that satisfactory arrangements have been made for the provision of underground telephone supply.

[PSC1165]

- 81. Electricity
 - (a) The production of written evidence from the local electricity supply authority certifying that reticulation of underground electricity has been completed; and
 - (b) The reticulation to include the provision of fully installed electric street lights to the relevant Australian standard. Such lights to be capable of being energised following a formal request by Council.

[PSC1185]

82. Prior to the issue of a subdivision certificate, the applicant shall produce a copy of the "satisfactory inspection report" issued by Council for all s68h2 permanent stormwater quality control devices.

[PSCNS01]

83. Primary weeding and/or planting and establishment will be completed in accordance with Habitat Restoration Plan prior to issue of subdivision certificate

[PSCNS02]

84. Prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate, a positive covenant under Section 88B of the Conveyancing Act is to be placed on the title of the proposed allotments to the satisfaction of Council's General Manager or his delegate. The covenant shall inform future owners that Tweed Shire Council will maintain the pressure pump station and delivery pipe system and require access to install and maintain the pressure pump station. The pump station will remain the property of Council. The 88B Instrument shall benefit Tweed Shire Council and contain a provision enabling the easement or right of access to be revoked, varied or modified only with the consent of Council.

[PSCNS03]

The Motion was **Carried**

FOR VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr D Holdom, Cr K Skinner, Cr B Longland, Cr J van Lieshout, Cr W Polglase AGAINST VOTE - Cr K Milne